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Iltem 1. Business

Certain statements in this Annual Report on ForaKlihcluding certain statements contained in "Bess” and "Management's Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Result©gpkrations," constitute "forwaldoking statements" within the meaning of Secti@i >f
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Se2fi&of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asraleé. The words or phrases "can be,"
"expects,” "may affect," "may depend," "believé'gStimate," "project" and similar words and phragesintended to identify such forward-
looking statements. Such forwalabking statements are subject to various knownuarithown risks and uncertainties and SIGA cautigns
that any forward-looking information provided byam behalf of SIGA is not a guarantee of futurefgrenance. SIGA's actual results could
differ materially from those anticipated by suchvward-looking statements due to a number of facsome of which are beyond SIGA's
control, including (i) the volatile and competitimature of the biotechnology industry, (ii) changedomestic and foreign economic and
market conditions, and (iii) the effect of federsthte and foreign regulation on SIGA's businessksuch forward-looking statements are
current only as of the date on which such statesnerte made. SIGA does not undertake any obligatiquublicly update any forward-
looking statement to reflect events or circumstarafeer the date on which any such statement iseroatb reflect the occurrence of
unanticipated events.

Introduction
SIGA Technologies, Inc. is referred to throughdis teport as "SIGA," "the Company," "we" or "us."

SIGA is a biotechnology company incorporated indelre on December 9, 1996. We aim to discover,ldpwand commercialize novel anti-
infectives, antibiotics and vaccines for seriodedtious diseases, including products for use femke against biological warfare agents such
as Smallpox and Arenaviruses (hemorrhagic fev€nsj.anti-viral programs are designed to preverinuit the replication of the viral
pathogen. Our anti-infectives programs are aimeteincreasingly serious problem of drug resisgtafitiese programs are designed to block
the ability of bacteria to attach to human tisghe,first step in the infection process. We are disveloping a technology for the mucosal
delivery of our vaccines which may allow the vaesiio activate the immune system at the mucus Boédces of the body -- the mouth, the
nose, the lungs and the gastrointestinal and uitajéracts -- the sites of entry for most infecisoagents.

Product Candidates and Market Potential
SIGA Biological Warfare Defense Product Portfolio

Anti-Smallpox Drug: While deliberate introductiohany pathogenic agent would be devastating, wielxkhe one that holds the greatest
potential for harming the general U.S. populat®®mallpox. At present there is no effective driidpwrhich to treat or prevent Smallpox
infections. To address this serious risk, SIGArtsts have identified a lead drug candidate, SZ2&; which inhibits vaccinia, cowpox,
ectromelia (mousepox), monkeypox, camelpox, anablareplication in cell culture but not other ulated viruses. Given the safety conce
with the current smallpox vaccine, there shouldé&eeral uses for an effective smallpox antiviraigdr

prophylactically, to protect the non-immune who areisk to exposure; therapeutically, to prevesédse or death in those exposed to
smallpox; and lastly, as an adjunct treatment éoitimunocompromised. SIGA scientists are also wagrkin several other smallpox drug
targets, including the viral proteinases, to depeadditional drug candidates for use in combinatierapy if necessary.

Anti-Arenavirus Drug: Arenaviruses are hemorrhdgicer viruses that have been classified as Catefyagyents by the Centers for Disease
Control and Prevention (CDC) due to the great tfisk they pose to public health and national safetyong the Category A viruses
recognized by the Centers for Disease Control aaddntion, there are four hemorrhagic fever aranaes (Junin, Machupo, Guanarito and
Sabia viruses) for which there are no United Stetexd and Drug Administration (FDA) approved treatts available. In order to meet this
threat, SIGA scientists have identified a lead dragdidate, SP94, which has demonstrated significant antividivéty in cell culture assa
against arenavirus pathogens. SIGA also has eatéige programs against other hemorrhagic fevase® including Lassa virus,
Lymphocytic choriomeningitis virus (LCMV), and Elaoin development. We
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believe that the availability of arenavirus antidrugs will address national and global securégds by acting as a significant deterrent and
defense against the use of arenaviruses as weapbiwerrorism.

Bacterial Commensal Vectors: Our scientists haweld@ed methods that allow essentially any genaesaze to be expressed in Generally
Regarded As Safe (GRAS) gram-positive bacterid) ¢ foreign protein being displayed on the surfaicthe live recombinant organisms.
Since these organisms are inexpensive to grow @ndeay stable, this technology affords the poéfiilof rapidly producing live recombina
vaccines against any variety of biological ageh#ét might be encountered, such as Bacillus anthfaathrax) or Smallpox. SIGA scientists
are working to develop an alternative vaccine wiiproved safety for use in preventing human diseassed by pathogenic orthopoxviruses
such as variola virus. To accomplish this goal veeudilizing our newly-developed BCV (bacterial covansal vector) technology. BCV
utilizes gram-positive commensal bacteria, sucBtesptococcus gordonii, to express heterologougem of interest, either in secreted form
or attached to its external surface. Phase | hutimical trials indicate that this S. gordonii Stréas safe and well-tolerated in humans. In
several different animal model systems S. gorduesi been shown to efficiently express various angand elicit protective immune
responses (cellular, humoral and mucosal). We \xelieat the delivery of selected vaccinia viruggerts via this live bacterial vector system
will provide an effective and safe method for prati@n of smallpox in humans.

Surface Protein Expression (SPEX) System: Our Ssterhave harnessed the protein expression pathefayram-positive bacteria and
turned them into protein productions factories.ngsbur proprietary SPEX system, we can producedongroteins at high levels in the
laboratory for use in subunit vaccine formulatioRsrthermore, we can envision engineering thesteliado colonize the mucosal surface
soldiers and/or civilians and secrete anti-toxiret protect against aerosolized botulism toxin.

Antibiotics: To combat the problems associated witierging antibiotic resistance, our scientistsdagneeloping drugs designed to hit a new
target - the bacterial adhesion organelles. Spadlifi, by using novel enzymes required for the $pamt and/or assembly of the proteins and
structures that bacteria require for adhesion mmnipation, we are developing new classes of begattrum antibiotics. This may prove
invaluable in providing prompt treatment to indivads encountering an unknown bacterial pathogéhdrair or food supply.

Market for Biological Defense Programs.

The U.S. government's proposed budget for the Deyeat of Homeland Security (the "DHS") for the &bgear beginning October 1, 2005
includes $2.5 billion of federal spending on PropioShield. In addition to contributing funds teetDHS, the Department of Defense will be
looking for innovative approaches to the preventiad treatment of biological warfare agents. Ontnefmajor concerns is Smallpox --
although declared extinct in 1980 by the World He@&lrganization, there is a threat that a roguenair a terrorist group may have an ille
inventory of the virus that causes Smallpox. Thiy tegal inventories of the virus are held undetremely tight security at the Centers for
Disease Control and Prevention (the "Centers fee@8e Control") in Atlanta, Georgia and at a laiooyain Russia. As a result of this threat,
the U.S. government has announced its intent teemsggnificant expenditures on finding a way to dewact the virus if turned loose by
terrorists or on a battlefield. The Congressionadi@et Office (the "CBQO") reported that the DHS pri$ the acquisition of 60 million doses
of new Smallpox vaccines over a three year pegothmencing in 2005. At an estimated $15 per dbsecost would be approximately $900
million. Further the CBO reports that the DHS wilend an additional $1 billion to replace expirextiss in 2007-2013.

The FDA has amended its regulations, effective Bihe&002, so that certain new drug and biologicatlucts used to reduce or prevent the
toxicity of chemical, biological, radiological, ouclear substances may be approved for use in aibss®d on evidence of effectiveness
derived only from appropriate animal studies ang aatditional supporting data. We believe that tiiange could make it possible for us to
have potential products in animal models approeeddle within a relatively short time frame if qunrograms are successful. Our Chief
Scientific Officer, Dennis Hruby, has over 20 yeaxperience working on Smallpox-related researchhas been leading a SIGA/Oregon
State University consortium working on an antivaalg development project for the past two years.
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The market potential for our biological warfare elefe products has not been quantified as yet behergbtential to obtain a share of the
approximately $9 billion the federal governmentasnmitting to support research in the coming y&ae government's purchase of
approximately $800 million worth of an older venrsi8mallpox vaccines to have an inventory on hameéded is evidence of such market
potential.

SIGA Anti-Infectives Product Portfolio

Our anti-infectives program is targeted principatiward drug-resistant bacteria and hospital-aegliinfections. According to estimates from
the Centers for Disease Control, approximately twilion hospital-acquired infections occur eachny@ahe United States.

Our anti-infectives approaches aim to block théitgtnf bacteria to attach to and colonize humasue, thereby blocking infection at the first
stage in the infection process. By comparisonpéaotics available today act by interfering withheit the structure or the metabolism of a
bacterial cell, affecting its ability to survivedto reproduce. No currently available antibiotagyet the attachment of a bacterium to its
target tissue. We believe that, by preventing atteant, the bacteria should be readily cleared byotidy's immune system.

Gram-Positive Antibiotic Technology: One of our kayti-infective programs is based on a novel tafgeantibiotic therapy. Our scientists
have identified an enzyme, a selective proteass] g most Gram-positive bacteria to anchor ceqtaiteins to the bacterial cell wall. These
surface proteins are the means by which certaitebiaaecognize, adhere to and colonize specs&ut. Our strategy is to develop protease
inhibitors as novel antibiotics. We believe protashibitors will have wide applicability to Granogitive bacteria in general, including
antibiotic resistant staphylococcus and a broadeaf serious infectious diseases including metiggnd respiratory tract infections. In
1997, we entered into a collaborative researchiaadse agreement with Wyeth to identify and depedomotease inhibitors as novel
antibiotics. In the first quarter of 2001, we rees a milestone payment from Wyeth for deliverytef first quantities of protease for
screening, and high-throughput screening for peséahibitors was initiated. In connection with @difort on this program we have entered
into a license agreement with the University ofifdahia at Los Angeles for certain technology thety be incorporated into our developm
of products for Wyeth. High throughput screeningofmpound libraries has been completed and leaghconus are currently being
evaluated in the laboratory and in animals.

Gram-Negative Antibiotic Technology: In 1998, wdered into a set of technology transfer and relagrgements with Medlmmune, Inc.,
Astra AB and Washington University, pursuant to ethive acquired rights to certain Gram-negativebéotic targets, products, screens and
services developed at Washington University. Inriaty 2000, we ended our collaborative researchdendlopment relationship with
Washington University on this technology. (See '@mbrative Research and Licenses"). We maintaionaaexclusive license to technology
acquired through these related agreements. Wesarg this technology in the development of antiboagainst Gram-negative pathogens.
As described above, these bacteria use structallesl pili to adhere to target tissue, and we ptaexploit the assembly and export of these
essential infective structures as novel anti-infectargets. We continue to work on enhancing thellectual property that we jointly share
with Washington University.

Broad-Spectrum Antibiotic Technology: An initial $toresponse to pathogen invasion is the releasgygfen radicals, such as superoxide
anions and hydrogen peroxide. The DegP proteaséristdine defense against these toxic compounds, whiehethal to invading pathoge!
and is a demonstrated virulence factor for sevarpbrtant Gram-negative pathogens: Salmonella typhium, Salmonella typhi, Brucella
melitensis and Yersinia enterocolitica. In all lbé$e pathogens it was demonstrated that organésrkisd) a functional DegP protease were
compromised for virulence and showed an increasasitivity to oxidative stress. It was also recgitmonstrated that in Pseudomonas
aeruginosa conversion to mucoidy, the so-callegpk#notype involves two DegP homologues.

Our scientists recently demonstrated that the Qegfase is conserved in Gragmositive pathogens, including S. pyogenes, S. poaiae, S
mutans and S. aureus. Moreover, our investiga@ve Bhown a conservation of function of this imaottprotease in Gram-positive
pathogens and we believe that DegP represents ditoad-spectrum anti-infective development tarQet. research has uncovered a
virulence-associated target of the DegP proteadentti be used to design an assay for high-thrguglscreening for the identification of lead
inhibitors of this potentially important anti-infiaee target.



Market for Anti -infective Programs.

There are currently more than 100 million presaipt written for antibiotics annually in the U.Sidawe estimate the worldwide market for
antibiotics to be more than $26 billion. Althouglr @roducts are too early in development to makeii@te assessments of how well they
might compete, if successfully developed and maikegainst other products currently existing atémelopment at this time, the successful
capture of even a relatively small global marketrsicould lead to a large dollar volume of sales.

Technology
Anti-Infectives Technology: Prevention of Attachmand Infectivity

The bacterial infectious process generally inclutiese steps:

colonization, invasion and disease. The adherehbaateria to a host's surface is crucial to eshislg colonization. Bacteria adhere through
a number of mechanisms, but generally by usinghigipecialized surface structures which, in tuindkdo specific structures or molecules

the host's cells or, as discussed below, to inamimigjects residing in the host. Once adhered, rbanteria will invade the host's cells and
either establish residence or continue invasiom deeper tissues. During any of these stagesntagling bacteria can cause the outward
manifestations of disease, in some cases throwgprtfduction and release of toxin molecules. Thersty of disease, while dependent on a
large combination of factors, is often the resiilthe ability of the bacteria to persist in the hdhese bacteria accomplish this persistence by
using surface molecules which can alter the hostispecific mechanisms or its highly specific immuesponses to clear or destroy the
organisms.

Unlike conventional antibiotics, our anti-infectsrzapproaches aim to block the ability of pathogéaicteria to attach to and colonize human

tissue, thereby preventing infection at its earlgage. Our scientific strategy is to inhibit thgression of bacterial surface proteins required
for bacterial infectivity. We believe that this appch has promise in the areas of hospital-acquireg-resistant infections and a broad range
of other diseases caused by bacteria.

Many special surface proteins used by bacteriafexi the host are anchored in the bacterial cell. \Bcientists at The Rockefeller Univers
("Rockefeller") have identified an amino acid seageand related enzyme, a selective proteaseathassential for anchoring proteins to the
surface of most Gram-positive bacteria. Publisinéormation indicates that this amino acid sequeschared by more than 50 different
surface proteins found on a variety of Gram-posibthacteria. This commonality suggests that thisejise represents a promising target for
the development of a new class of antibiotic présifor the treatment of a wide range of infectidiseases. Experiments by our scientists
have shown that without this sequence, proteineaamecome anchored to the bacterial surface argdttte bacteria are no longer capable of
attachment, colonization or infection. Such "disadhbacteria should be readily cleared by the Isodymune system. Our drug discovery
strategy is to use a combination of structbased drug design and high throughput screeningeduoes to identify compounds that inhibit
protease, thereby blocking the anchoring procéssickessful, this strategy should provide reliefif many Gram-positive bacterial
infections, but may prove particularly importantimmbating diseases caused by the emerging amtibéstistance of the Gram-positive
organisms Streptococcu, aureus, Streptococcus reae) and the enterococci.

In contrast to the above program, which focuse&mm-positive bacteria, our pilicide program, basgpdn initial research performed at
Washington University in St. Louis ("Washington Misity"), focuses on a number of new and novegjetr all of which impact on the abil

of Gram-negative bacteria to assemble adhesivempitheir surfaces. Pili are proteins on the swsaaf Gram-negative bacteria -- such as E.
coli, salmonella, and shigella -- that are requic@dhe attachment of the bacteria to human tistheefirst step in the infection process. This
research program is based upon the well-charaetenizeraction between a periplasmic protein haperone -- and the protein subunits
required to form pili. In addition to describingetprocess by which chaperones and pili subunigsant, we have developed an assay systems
necessary to screen for potential therapeutic comgi® and have provided an initial basis for sgigatovel antibiotics that work by

interfering with the pili adhesion mechanism.



Vaccine Technologies: Mucosal Immunity and Vacdiivery

Using proprietary technology licensed from RockKefelSIGA is developing specific commensal bact€itammensals") as a means to
deliver mucosal vaccines. Commensals are harmbegeiia that naturally occupy the body's surfacils éifferent commensals inhabiting
different surfaces, particularly the mucosal sugfa®©ur vaccine candidates use genetically engidesrmmensals to deliver antigens for a
variety of pathogens to the mucosal immune sysWhen administered, the genetically engineered camsaie colonize the mucosal surface
and replicate. By activating a local mucosal immuesponse, our vaccine candidates are designaéverg infection and disease at the
earliest possible stage, as opposed to most caomahtaccines which are designed to act afterctida has already occurred.

Our commensal vaccine candidates use Gram-positieeeria. Rockefeller scientists have identifigat@tein region that is used by Gram-
positive bacteria to anchor proteins to their stefa We are using the proprietary technology liedrfsom Rockefeller to combine antigens
from a wide range of infectious organisms, botlah@nd bacterial, with the surface protein anclegian of a variety of commensal
organisms. By combining a specific antigen witlpacdific commensal, vaccines may be tailored to tio¢htarget pathogen and its mucosal
point of entry.

To target an immune response to a particular mlisostace, a commensal vaccine would employ a comsaleorganism that naturally
inhabits that surface. For example, vaccines targeexually transmitted diseases might employ alaatillus acidophilus, a commensal
colonizing the female urogenital tract. Vaccinggéding gastrointestinal diseases could employadlzatillus casei, a commensal colonizing
the gastrointestinal tract. We have conductedainitkperiments using Streptococcus gordonii ("$dguii"), a commensal that colonizes the
oral cavity and which may be used in vaccines targgathogens that enter through the upper respyréract, such as the influenza virus.

By using an antigen unique to a given pathogentablenology may potentially be applied to any itifacs agent that enters the body through
a mucosal surface. Our scientists have expresgkdrashored a variety of viral and bacterial antgyen the outside of S. gordonii, including
the M6 protein from group A streptococcus, a grofiprganisms that causes a range of diseasesgdinglstrep throat, necrotizing fasciitis,
impetigo and scarlet fever. In addition, proteire other infectious agents, such as HIV and hupaggilloma virus have also been expres
using this system. We believe this technology ®ilble the expression of most antigens regardfesgeoor shape. In animal studies, we
have shown that the administration of a geneticallgineered S. gordonii vaccine prototype induagh b local mucosal immune response
and a systemic immune response.

We believe that mucosal vaccines developed usingmprietary commensal delivery technology coulovide a number of advantages,
including:

0 More complete protection than conventional vaesimMucosal vaccines in general may be more effetiian conventional parenteral
vaccines, due to mucosal vaccines' ability to peedooth a systemic and local (mucosal) immune mrespo

o Safety advantage over other live vectors: A nunolbéacterial pathogens have been geneticallyaesaless infectious, or attenuated, for
use as live vaccine vectors. Commensals, by votukeir substantially harmless nature, may offeater delivery vehicle without fear of
genetic reversion to the infectious state inheireattenuated pathogens.

o Non-injection administration: Oral, nasal, reaalvaginal administration of the vaccine elimirsatiee need for painful injections with their
potential adverse reactions.

o Potential for combined vaccine delivery: The @tah's Vaccine Initiative, a worldwide effort topnove vaccination of children sponsored
by the World Health Organization (WHO), has calledthe development of combined vaccines, spedifita reduce the number of needle
sticks per child, by combining several vaccines mbe injection, thereby increasing compliance @exteasing disease. We believe our
commensal delivery technology can be an effectie¢hiod of delivery of multi-component
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vaccines within a single commensal organism thdtest multiple diseases or diseases caused byptaudtiains of an infectious agent.

o Eliminating need for refrigeration: One of th@lplems confronting the effective delivery of pamrat vaccines is the need for refrigeration
at all stages prior to injection. The stabilitytbé commensal organisms in a freeze-dried statédwfor the most part, eliminate the need for
special climate conditions, a critical considenatiespecially for the delivery of vaccines in dey@hg countries.

o Low cost production: By using a live bacteriattog, extensive downstream processing is elimindézaling to considerable cost savings in
the production of the vaccine. The potential fam@lating the need for refrigeration would add ddesably to these savings by reducing the
costs inherent in refrigeration for vaccine deljxer

Strep Throat Vaccine Candidate. Until the age ofMi&ny children suffer from recurrent strep thiio&ctions. Up to three percent of
ineffectively treated strep throat cases progresheumatic fever, a debilitating heart diseasackwivorsens with each succeeding
streptococcal infection. Since the advent of pdimidherapy, rheumatic fever in the United Stataes experienced a dramatic decline.
However, in the last two decades, rheumatic feasrdxperienced a resurgence in the United StadesoPthe reason for this is the latent
presence of this organism in children who do nepldiy symptoms of a sore throat, and, thereforeane untreated and at risk for
development of rheumatic fever. Based on data ttenCenters for Disease Control and Preventiometaee five to 10 million cases of
pharyngitis due to group A streptococcus in thetéthStates each year. There are over 32 milliokirei in the principal age group targeted
by us for vaccination. Worldwide, it is estimatbattone percent of all school age children in teetbping world have rheumatic heart
disease. Additionally, despite the relative easeeating strep throat with antibiotics, the specfeantibiotic resistance is always present. In
fact, resistance to erythromycin, the second Imtébaotic in patients allergic to penicillin, hapmeared in a number of cases.

0 We believe that the reason no vaccine for stiegat has been developed is because of problemsiaiesl with identifying an antigen that
is common to the more than 120 different serotygegoup A streptococcus, the bacterium that catiseslisease. We have licensed from
Rockefeller a proprietary antigen which is commomost types of group A streptococcus, includinmetythat have been associated with
rheumatic fever. When this antigen was orally adsténed to animals, it was shown to provide pradecagainst multiple types of group A
streptococcal infection. Using this antigen, wesseking to develop a mucosal vaccine for strepathr

0 SIGA has taken a parallel vaccine developmenktvadth two formulations of the cross-protectiveegtococcal antigen. One approach
expresses the strep throat antigen on the surfabe commensal bacterium, Streptococcus gordwhiich lives on the surface of the teeth
and gums. Pre-clinical research in mice and ralbiaissestablished the ability of this vaccine caaidido colonize and induce both a local and
systemic immune response. The other candidateausaisunit (purified protein) approach, in which émdigen is delivered intranasally with a
mucosal adjuvant (enhances the immune respond&) thé commensal approach, the subunit approacprbeaisled significant protection in
mice from challenges by multiple serotypes. Wecalaborating with the National Institutes of Hé&aftNIH") and the University of

Maryland Center for Vaccine Development on theictihdevelopment of this vaccine candidate. In @afpion with the NIH we filed an
Investigational New Drug Application ("IND") witthe FDA in December 1997. The first stage of théisécal trials, using the commensal
delivery system without the strep throat antigearerxcompleted at the University of Maryland in 2000e study showed the commensal
delivery system to be well-tolerated and that @r¢aneously eradicated or was easily eradicatembbyentional antibiotics. A second clinical
trial of the commensal delivery system without strep throat antigen was initiated in 2000 at timévekrsity of Maryland. The study was
completed in January 2002 and the results corrébdthe results of the earlier study regardingrémiee and spontaneous eradication. Furthel
development continues principally on the subunjirapch, which is currently in pre-clinical studies.

o In the U.S. there are about 19 million childrge 2 to 6 years who could be candidates to reseigk a vaccine at the time of its
introduction and then around 4 million babies beach year to be protected. Assuming a charge op8R8ose and three doses needed for
protection, there could be a potential market



for a strep throat vaccine of $1.4 billion to immaenthe entire U.S. population of 2 to 6 year @ds, thereafter, $300 million per year to
maintain immunization in new births.

Surface Protein Expression System ("SPEX")

The ability to overproduce many bacterial and humateins has been made possible through the usea@mbinant DNA technology. The
introduction of DNA molecules into E. coli has baba method of choice to express a variety of genducts, because of these bacteria's
rapid reproduction and well-understood genetics.déspite the development of many efficient E.-balsed gene expression systems, the
most important concern continues to be associaittdswbsequent purification of the product. Recamaht proteins produced in this manner
do not readily cross E. coli's outer membrane,amd result, proteins must be purified from thedyga cytoplasm or periplasmic space.
Purification of proteins from these cellular contpaents can be very difficult. Frequently encourdgseoblems include low product yields,
contamination with potentially toxic cellular matdr(i.e., endotoxin) and the formation of largeamts of partially folded polypeptide cha
in non-active aggregates termed inclusion bodies.

To overcome these problems, we have taken advaofame knowledge of Gram-positive bacterial protekpression and anchoring
pathways. This pathway has evolved to handle #resport of surface proteins that vary widely iresgtructure and function. Modifying the
approach used to create commensal mucosal vaceirdsgave developed methods which, instead of aimatine foreign protein to the
surface of the recombinant Gram-positive bacteesylt in it being secreted into the surroundinglime in a manner which is readily
amenable to simple batch purification. We belidve@ddvantages of this approach include the easkaed cost of Gram-positive bacterial
growth, the likelihood that secreted recombinaotgins will be folded properly, and the abilitygarify recombinant proteins from the
culture medium without having to disrupt the baeterells and liberating cellular contaminants. @fpositive bacteria may be grown simply
in scales from those required for laboratory reseap to commercial mass production.

Collaborative Research and Licenses
We have entered into the following license agredmand collaborative research arrangements:

Rockefeller University. In accordance with an exohe worldwide license agreement with Rockefelez,have obtained the right and license
to make, use and sell mucosal vaccines based anpaitive organisms and products for the therapsyention and diagnosis of diseases
caused by streptococcus, staphylococcus and athenisms. The license covers eight issued U.Snfsaéad three issued European patents,
as well as one pending U.S. patent applicationcanr@dpending European application. The issued UiStates patents expire in 2008, 2014
(4), 2015 (2), and 2016. respectively. The agre¢menerally requires us to pay royalties on safgga@ducts developed from the licensed
technologies, and fees on revenues from sublicensdeere applicable, and we are responsible focdlsés of filing and prosecuting patent
applications. The agreement also requires us td péy of certain milestone payments we receive fvégyeth to Rockefeller, if any, under
our collaborative and license agreement with WyAtttordingly, under the agreement, which is ouy@greement that requires us to make
milestone payments, we could be required to makestone payments to Rockefeller of up to an aggeegimount of approximately $1.1
million. To date, we have not received any milestpayments from Wyeth that would require us to magayment to Rockefeller. The
primary potential products from this collaborateme the strep vaccine and the broad spectrum afitibUnder the agreement, we paid the
university approximately $850,000 to support reskeat Rockefeller. The agreement to fund reseaashehded and no payments have been
made to the university since the year ended DeceB1hel 999. Under the agreement we are obligateaydRockefeller a royalty on net se
by SIGA at rates between 2.5% and 5% dependingastupt and amount of sales. On sales by any sebdie, we will pay Rockefeller a
royalty of 15% of anything we receive. The terntted agreement is for the duration of the paten&nbed. As we do not currently know w
any patents pending or future patents will expire,cannot at this time determine the term of tgi®ament. At the end of that term of the
agreement, we have the right to continue to pradtie then existing technical information as ayfphid, perpetual license. The agreement
can be terminated earlier if we are in breach efgiovisions of the agreement and do not cure is&ch in the allowed cure period. We are
compliant in all our obligations under the agreetnen



Oregon State University. Oregon State Universi@3U") is also a party to our license agreement Ritkckefeller, whereby we have
obtained the right and license to make, use amgs®ucts for the therapy, prevention and diagnos$idiseases caused by streptococcus.
Pursuant to a separate research support agreerter@3U, we provided funding for sponsored resedincbhugh December 31, 1999, with
exclusive license rights to all inventions and diagries resulting from this research. At this time,additional funding is contemplated under
this agreement, however, we retain the exclussanking rights to the inventions and discoverias itiiay arise from this collaboration. The
term of the agreement is for the duration of theeipis licensed. As we do not currently know whey gatents pending or future patents will
expire, we cannot at this time determine the tefthis agreement. The agreement can be terminatdiéreif we are in breach of the
provisions of the agreement and do not cure thadbrén the allowed cure period. We are compliaraliour obligations under the agreem:

During 1999, we acquired an option to enter inicense with OSU in which we will acquire the righib certain technology pertaining to the
potential development of a chlamydia vaccine. Ibrkary 2000, we exercised our option and pursumantexclusive license agreement di
March 2000, we have made payments to OSU of apmiateily $25,000 as part of our obligation underdpton.

In September 2000, we entered into a subcontrabt@%U. The contract is for a project which is &egl towards developing novel antiviral
drugs capable of preventing disease and patholmg$rhallpox in the event this pathogen were todezlias an agent of bioterrorism. The
project is being funded by a grant from the NIHeTasic virology aspects of the project will be ducted at OSU and the drug development
will be performed by us under the subcontract. Bidget for the subcontract work was negotiated peaa by year basis with OSU and
depended on the progress of the program and furadiaidgble. In the year ended December 31, 200dea@gnized revenue of $15,000. On
October 5, 2001 the agreement was extended thraughst 31, 2002. For the period ended Decembe2@®12 we recognized $75,000 in
revenue. The agreement was extended again throughsA31, 2003. The sub-contract is on a year &o ggnewal. Through December 31,
2003 we received a total of $130,000 under theesgemt. During the year ended December 31, 2003 wadlker the subcontract was
completed.

Wyeth. We have entered into a collaborative reseantl license agreement with Wyeth in connectidh thie discovery and development of
anti-infectives for the treatment of gram-positbacterial infections. Pursuant to the agreemengttWprovided funding for a joint research
and development program, subject to certain mitestpthrough September 30, 1999 and is resporfsibéaiditional milestone payments. In
May 2001, we entered into an amendment to the Julp97 agreement. The amendment extended theofettra original agreement to
September 30, 2001. The extension provided for Wi@tontinue to pay us at a rate of $450,000 par through the term of the amended
agreement. During the term of the agreement as @éedenve received $787,500 from Wyeth to supporkvparformed by SIGA under the
agreement and $237,500 for achieving a researd@stuoile. For the year ended December 31, 2001 wgnized revenue of $1,025,000. The
agreement to fund additional research was not dettbeyond September 30, 2001.

Wyeth is obligated to make milestone payments tasuany product developed progresses through tiedpproval process under our
agreement with Wyeth, which is the only agreememsyant to which we are entitled to receive milestpayments. For products developed
we could receive up to approximately $13 milliomiilestone payments for approval of the produt¢henU.S. and Japan. We would also
receive royalty payments of 2% on the first $300,60cumulative licensed product sales, 4% on ansalas up to $100 million, 6% on
annual sales between $100 million and $250 millind 8% on annual sales above $250 million. Thedeeawill expire on the earlier of 10
years or the last to expire issued patent. Wyesttiaright to terminate the agreement early, aetgidays written notice. If terminated ea
all rights granted to Wyeth revert to SIGA excejthwespect to any compound identified by Wyetlo&the date of termination and subject
to the milestone and royalty obligations of theesggnent.

National Institutes of Health. We have entered mtdinical trials agreement with the NIH pursutontvhich the NIH, with our cooperatio

will conduct clinical trials of our strep throata@ne candidate. The agreement will fund trialetigh Phase Il of the FDA approval process.
To date, two Phase | clinical trials have been cetetl for the strep vaccine delivery system. Wenamking to optimize and test the vaccine
formulation prior to initiating Phase | clinicalafs with the recombinant commensal vector basedina. The agreement may
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be terminated unilaterally by the parties uponysddys prior notice. If terminated we will receivepies of all data, reports and other
information related to the trials and any unusectiree.

Prior to 2002 we received grants amounting to $¥XT to support our antibiotic and vaccine develapnpeograms. In June 2002, we
received a Phase Il Small Business Innovation Rekd8BIR) grant for approximately $865,000. Thargrwas for the two year period
beginning June, 1, 2002 and ending May 31, 200Awulgust 2004 we were awarded two Phase | and tvasé>h grants totaling
approximately $12.1 million to support our work 8mallpox and Arenaviruses. The grants were acquaisguart of our acquisition of certain
assets from ViroPharma Incorporated ("Viropharmaty. the years ending December 31, 2004, 20032002, we have recognized revenue
from the SBIR grants of $1,415,000, $388,000 antgX0, respectively.

As part of our operational strategy we routinelirsit grants to the NIH. There is no assurancewlsawill receive additional grants.

Washington University. In February 1998, we ententéal a research collaboration and worldwide lieeagreement with Washington
University pursuant to which we obtained the rightl license to make, use and sell antibiotic prtedoased on gram-negative technology for
all human and veterinary diagnostic and therapeusts. The license covered five pending UnitedeStpatent applications and correspon
foreign patent applications. The agreement gerneradjuired us to pay royalties on sales of proddetsloped from the licensed technologies
and fees on revenues from sublicensees, wherecapldi and we were responsible for certain milesymayments and for the costs of filing
and prosecuting patent applications. Pursuanted@gnieement, we agreed to provide funding to WashimUniversity for sponsored research
through February 6, 2001, with exclusive licengits to all inventions and discoveries resultiragrfrthis research. During 1999, a dispute
arose between the parties regarding their resgepgvformance under the agreement. In February, 208@arties reached a settlement
agreement and mutual release of their obligationeuthe research collaboration agreement. Unaéetetims of the settlement, we are
released from any further payments to Washingtoiwvéssity and have disclaimed any rights to the pistéicensed under the original
agreement. As part of the settlement agreemengntexed into a non-exclusive license to certaiematcovered in the original agreement.
SIGA and Washington University will share equahy responsibility for the administration and thpenses for the prosecution of patent
applications and /or patents in the agreement.cbliaboration is for the gram-negative product apyity. We will receive licensing

revenue from Washington University that derivesrfrine commercialization of products covered by patights of the agreement. The
royalty will be 20% of the first $400,000 receivad 10% of the next $1,000,000 received with d fzgment of licensing revenues to us

to exceed $500,000. The term of our agreementWalkhington University is for the duration of thagyds and a number of pending patents.
As we do not currently know when any patents pegdinfuture patents will expire, we cannot at tirise definitively determine the term of
this agreement. The agreement cannot be terminateds we fail to pay our share of the joint pataists for the technology licensed. We
have currently met all our obligations under thgsegment.

Abbott Laboratories. In March 2000, we entered amoagreement with the Ross Products Division didgibLaboratories ("Ross"). The
agreement grants Ross an exclusive option to redgain exclusive license to certain SIGA technolaigy patents in addition to certain
research development services. In exchange foamgseservices and the option, Ross was obligatpdyais $120,000 in three installment
$40,000. The first payment of $40,000 was receimddarch 2000 and was recognized ratably, oveteha of the arrangement. The
remaining installments are contingent upon meaterggin milestones under the agreement and wilebegnized as revenue upon comple
and acceptance of such milestones. The first mitestvas met, and we received an additional payofe$®0,000 in the quarter ended
September 30, 2000. During the years ended DeceBih@001 and 2000, we recognized revenue in tlmuatrof $45,000 and $80,000,
respectively. The development agreement was fexaadly transmitted disease potential product opity. The research program was
completed in late 2001 and additional work wasgrened into 2003, however the additional work caubtl be completed due to the inability
of one of our sub-contractors to perform. As alteste gave Ross notice of termination on Janu#&ry?P04 and all rights to the technology
reverted to us.

Regents of the University of California. In DecemB600, we entered into an exclusive license agee¢nd a sponsored research agree
with the Regents of the University of Californid&R€gents"). Under the license agreement we obtaights for the exclusive commercial
development, use and sale of products relatedrtaicenventions in exchange for a non-refundalzlerise issuance fee of $15,000 and an
annual maintenance
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fee of $10,000. As of December 31, 2004 we haveenpagments of approximately $91,000 under the $ieem the event that we slibense
the license, we must pay Regents 15% of all royadiyments made to SIGA. Under the agreement, welsd pay Regents 15% of all
royalties received from Wyeth. The agreement appbethe gram positive product opportunity and aallaborative agreement with Wyeth.
The term of the agreement is until the expiratibthe last-to-expire patent licensed under thigagrent. The agreement may be terminated
by Regents if we default on any of our obligatiahg, agreement with Wyeth is terminated and a gubestagreement is not entered into or if
we give notice that we do not intend to make prodhaen the licensed technology. We have currentgt ail our obligations under this
agreement.

U.S. Army Medical Research Acquisition Activity. December 2002, we entered into a four years conirih the U.S. Army Medical
Research Acquisition Activity (USAMRAA) to devel@pdrug to treat Smallpox. The contract start date $anuary 1, 2003 and the total
amount approximated $1.6 million. Annual paymentsrdhe term of the agreement will be approxima$190,000.

TransTech Pharma, Inc. In October 2002, we entietedh drug discovery collaboration agreement WithnsTech Pharma, Inc. ("TransTech
Pharma"). Under the agreement, SIGA and TransThaeahnfa collaborate on the discovery, optimizatiod development of lead compounds
to therapeutic agents. The costs of developmergtaed. SIGA and TransTech Pharma would shar@euegegenerated from licensing and
profits from any commercialized product sales. @ageeement will be in effect until terminated by fgaeties or upon cessation of research or
sales of all products developed under the agreertighe agreement is terminated, relinquishedxmires for any reason certain rights and
benefits will survive the termination. Obligationst expressly indicated to survive the agreemelteviminate with the agreement. No
revenues were recognized in 2004, 2003 and 2002 tinés collaboration.

Intellectual Property and Proprietary Rights

Our commercial success will depend in part on owar@ur collaborators' ability to obtain and maintpatent protection for our proprietary
technologies, drug targets and potential produntsta effectively preserve our trade secrets. Beeat the substantial length of time and
expense associated with bringing potential prodiictsugh the development and regulatory clearanesegsses to reach the marketplace, the
pharmaceutical industry places considerable impogan obtaining patent and trade secret proteciioa patent positions of pharmaceutical
and biotechnology companies can be highly unceaathinvolve complex legal and factual questiors chinsistent policy regarding the
breadth of claims allowed in biotechnology patéres emerged to date. Accordingly, we cannot prédéctype and breadth of claims allov

in these patents.

We have licensed the rights to eight issued U.fnpa and three issued European patents. Thesgphtve varying lives and they are
related to the technology licensed from Rockefdllaiversity for the Strep and Gram-positive produtt/e have one additional patent
application in the U.S. and one application in Broelating to this technology. We are joint owwéith Washington University of seven
issued patents in the U.S. and one in Europe.ditiad, there are four cowned U.S. patent applications. These patentsoatid technolog
used for the gram-negative product opportunities.afé also exclusive owner of one U.S. patent laretU.S. patent applications. One of
these U.S. patent applications relates to our OpegBuct opportunities.

The following are our patent positions as of Decen#i, 2004.

Nu mber
Number Number Excl usively  Number
Exclusively Co-Exclusively Lic ensed Exclusively ~ Number
PATENTS Licensed Licensed f rom Licensed Owned by  Patent Exp iration Dates
from with Or egon from UCLA SIGA
Rockefeller ~ Washington S tate
Univ. Univ. Univ ersity
2008, 2013( 2), 2014 (6),
u.s. 8 7 1 1 2015 (2), 2 016 (2), 2017,
2019, 2020 (2)
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Nu mber

Number Number Excl usively  Number
Exclusively Co-Exclusively Lic ensed Exclusively ~ Number
PATENTS Licensed Licensed f rom Licensed Owned by  Patent Exp iration Dates
from with Or egon from UCLA SIGA
Rockefeller Washington S tate
Univ. Univ. Univ ersity
2009, 201 3, 2014 (2),
Australia 5 2 1 2015, 201 6, 2019,2020
Canada 2 2010 , 2019
Europe 3 1 1 2009, 2010 , 2013, 2019,
2 020
Hungary 1 2 013
Japan 2 2010 , 2012
Mexico 1 2 016
New Zealand 1 2 016
China 1 2 016
Number
Number Number Exclusively
Exclusively Co-Exclusively Licensed Number Number
Licensed Licensed from Exclusively  Owned by
APPLICATIONS from with Oregon Licensed SIGA
Rockefeller Washington State from UCLA
Univ. Univ. University
U.S. applications 1 4 2 3
U.S. provisionals 4
PCT 2
Australia 1 1 2
Canada 3 2 2 1 1
Europe 1 1 1 1 2
Finland 1
Japan 3 2 1 1 2
Hungary 1

We also rely upon trade secret protection for amfidential and proprietary information. No assweigan be given that other companies

not independently develop substantially equivapgnprietary information and techniques or othervgaa access to our trade secrets or that
we can meaningfully protect our trade secrets.

Government Regulation

Regulation by governmental authorities in the Whitates and other countries will be a signifidantor in the production and marketing of
any biopharmaceutical products that we may devdlbp.nature and the extent to which such regulatinay apply to us will vary depending
on the nature of any such products. Virtually &lbor potential biopharmaceutical products willueg regulatory approval by governmental
agencies prior to commercialization. In particutarman therapeutic products are subject to rigopoetclinical and clinical testing and other
approval procedures by the FDA and similar healtih@rities in foreign countries. Various federatstes and regulations also govern or
influence the manufacturing, safety, labeling, atex, record keeping and marketing of such prodiitis.process of obtaining these appro
and the subsequent compliance with appropriatadéded foreign statutes and regulations requivesekpenditure of substantial resources.
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In order to test clinically, produce and marketdarets for diagnostic or therapeutic use, a compangt comply with mandatory procedures
and safety standards established by the FDA angamble agencies in foreign countries. Before l@gmhuman clinical testing of a
potential new drug, a company must file an IND eswkive clearance from the FDA. This applicatioa s8ummary of the pre-clinical studies
that were conducted to characterize the drug, dctutoxicity and safety studies, as well as adépth discussion of the human clinical
studies that are being proposed.

The pre-marketing program required for approvath®s/FDA of a new drug typically involves a time-soming and costly three-phase
process. In Phase |, trials are conducted withalstamber of patients to determine the early gabetfile, the pattern of drug distribution
and metabolism. In Phase ll, trials are conductitld small groups of patients afflicted with a targesease in order to determine preliminary
efficacy, optimal dosages and expanded evidensafetfy. In Phase lll, large scale, muaénter comparative trials are conducted with p&t
afflicted with a target disease in order to prové®ugh data for statistical proof of efficacy aadiety required by the FDA and others.

The FDA has amended its regulations, effective Bih€002, so that certain new drug and biologicatiucts used to reduce or prevent the
toxicity of chemical, biological, radiological, auclear substances may be approved for use in laibased on evidence of effectiveness
derived only from appropriate animal studies ang aatditional supporting data. To date, the FDA matsgiven clearance to any products
submitted under the amended regulations.

The FDA closely monitors the progress of each efttiree phases of clinical testing and may, idigsretion, reevaluate, alter, suspend or
terminate the testing based on the data that hese &ccumulated to that point and its assessméin oisk/benefit ratio to the patient.
Estimates of the total time required for carrying such clinical testing vary between two and tearg. Upon completion of such clinical
testing, a company typically submits a New Drug Kqation ("NDA") or Product License Application (LRA") to the FDA that summarizes
the results and observations of the drug duringlinécal testing. Based on its review of the NDARLA, the FDA will decide whether to
approve the drug. This review process can be tpritgthy, and approval for the production and maniedf a new pharmaceutical product
can require a number of years and substantial figndihere can be no assurance that any approviilsergranted on a timely basis, if at all.

Once the product is approved for sale, FDA regafetigovern the production process and marketinigitées, and a post-marketing testing
and surveillance program may be required to mowibatinuously a product's usage and its effectsdiat approvals may be withdrawn if
compliance with regulatory standards is not mamadi Other countries in which any products develdpeus may be marketed could imp
a similar regulatory process.

Commercialization of animal health products cambteomplished more rapidly than human health pradulike the human market,
potential vaccine or therapeutic products can betedirectly on the target animal as soon as ithéygt leaves the research laboratory. The
data collected in these trials is submitted toUt®. Department of Agriculture for review and eveltproduct approval.

Competition

The biotechnology and pharmaceutical industriechegacterized by rapidly evolving technology amtgnse competition. Our competitors
include most of the major pharmaceutical companiggch have financial, technical and marketing ugses significantly greater than ours.
Biotechnology and other pharmaceutical competitichide Acambis, AVI Biopharma, Avant Immuno-theeafics, Inc, Bavarian Nordic

AS, Chimerix Inc., Dynport Vaccine Company, Biopd@br Biopharma, Inc., Pharmathene, and Microbjdtie. Academic institutions,
governmental agencies and other public and privestearch organizations are also conducting reseatshties and seeking patent protection
and may commercialize products on their own orughojoint venture. There can be no assurance thratampetitors will not succeed in
developing products that are more effective or tesdly than any which are being developed by ushach would render our technology and
future products obsolete and noncompetitive.
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Human Resources and Facilitie:

As of March 14, 2005 we had 35 full time employdésne of our employees are covered by a colledtargaining agreement and we
consider our employee relations to be good.

Availability of Reports and Other Information

We file annual, quarterly, and current reports xgrstatements, and other documents with the Sézsiahd Exchange Commission ("SEC")
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the Harge Act"). The public may read and copy any natethat we file with the SEC at the
SEC's Public Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street, Mi&/shington, DC 20549. The public may obtain infation on the operation of the
Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-8BG-$9330. Also, the SEC maintains an Internet welikiat contains reports, proxy and
information statements, and other information rdgpay issuers, including us, that file electronigallith the SEC. The public can obtain any
documents that we file with the SEC at http://wwae.gov.

In addition, our company website can be found enltiternet at www.siga.com. The website contaif@rimation about us and our
operations. Copies of each of our filings with 8fC on Form 10-K, Form 10-KSB, Form 10-Q, Form 18Band Form 8-K, and all
amendments to those reports, can be viewed andldaded free of charge as soon as reasonably mbiafter the reports and amendm:
are electronically filed with or furnished to thES. To view the reports, access www.siga.com/iroresiml and click on "SEC Filing".

The following corporate governance related documarg also available on our website:
o Code of Ethics and Business Conduct

o Amended and Restated Audit Committee Charter

o Compensation Committee Charter

o Nominating and Corporate Governance Committeet€ha

o Procedure for Sending Communications to the Boamirectors

o Procedures for Security Holder Submission of N@tihg Recommendations

0 2004 Policy on Confidentiality of Information aBecurities Trading

To review these documents, access www.siga.consfiarétml and click on "Corporate Governance". Afithe above documents can also
be obtained in print by any shareholder upon reifoethe Secretary, SIGA Technologies, Inc., 42Qihgton Avenue, Suite 408, New York,
New York 1017(C

Item 2. Properties

Our headquarters are located in New York City amdresearch and development facilities are loceté@brvallis, Oregon. In New York, we
lease approximately 3,000 square feet under a thasexpires in November 2007. In Corvallis, waske approximately 10,000 square feet
under a lease that expires in December 2007.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
SIGA is not a party, nor is its property the subjefc any pending legal proceedings other thanimeuttigation incidental to its business.
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Securityolders

At our Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on Debeml14, 2004, our stockholders elected our Boaidikgctors and ratified our selection
of independent registered public accounting firm:
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The following nominees were elected to our Boar®iéctors upon the following votes:

Director Votes Fo r Withheld
Donald G. Drapkin 20,719,8 41 914,668
Bernard L. Kasten, M.D. 21,456,0 84 178,425
Thomas E. Constance 21,454,0 02 180,507
Adnan M. Mjalli, Ph.D. 21,457,7 59 176,750
Mehmet C. Oz, M.D. 20,717,8 66 916,643
Eric A. Rose, M.D. 21,458,0 09 175,500
Paul G. Savas 21,457,6 02 176,907
Michael A. Weiner, M.D. 21,459,1 89 175,320
Judy S. Slotkin 21,459,6 82 174,827
James J. Antal 21,457,2 64 177,245

Our stockholders ratified the selection of PricesfabuseCoopers LLP as our independent registef@it @accounting firm for the fiscal year
ending December 31, 2004 by casting 21,550,273\nt&avor of this proposal, 26,320 votes againstgroposal and 57,916 abstained.
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Relaed Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Eqty Securities
Price Range of Common Stock

Our common stock has been traded on the NasdadGapaWlarket since September 9, 1997 and trades theesymbol "SIGA." Prior to
that time there was no public market for our comrstmek. The following table sets forth, for theipds indicated, the high and low closing
sales prices for the common stock, as reporteti@iNasdag SmallCap Market.

Price Range

2003 High  Low
FirstQuarter ......ccoocveeevvveeeeeeee $1.49 $1.02
Second QuUarter ......cccceeeeevveeeees $191 $1.09
Third Quarter .... . $213 $161
Fourth Quarter ......ccccceevvvveeeeeeeees $260 $1.80
2004 High Low
FirstQuarter ......cooceevvvvevvveeeee. L $234 $1.85
Second Quarter .......ccceeeeeeevvneeeeee $1.93 $1.29
Third Quarter ........ccoceeeevvvvveeeeeee $1.63 $1.23
Fourth Quarter .....ccccoevvevvvevveveeee L $1.75 $1.35

As of March 28, 2005, the closing bid price of ctammon stock was $1.53 per share. There were 1ld&isof record as of March 28, 2005.
We believe that the number of beneficial ownerswfcommon stock is substantially greater thamtimaber of record holders, because a
large portion of common stock is held in brokerést names."

We have paid no dividends on our common stock amdevnot expect to pay cash dividends in the feasle future. We are not under any
contractual restriction as to our present or fuabriity to pay dividends. We currently intend &ain any future earnings to finance the
growth and development of our business.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

All of the following sales of unregistered sec@stivere made without registration under the SeesirKct in reliance upon the exemption
from registration afforded under Section 4(6) &f Securities Act and Rule 506 of Regulation D prigated thereunder. Accordingly, the
transfer of the securities is subject to substhregtrictions. Securities were only purchased Agctedited Investors” as that term is defined
under Rule 501 of Regulation D. Proceeds from fferings were used for general working capital [mses.

In August 2004, we acquired certain governmenttgrand two early stage antiviral programs, Smaligad Arenavirus, targeting certain
agents of biological warfare from ViroPharma. Astpd the purchase price for these assets they issved 1,000,000 shares of our common
stock.

In August 2003, we entered into an agreement widitAMdrews & Forbes Holdings Inc. ("MacAndrews & Bes"), a holding company of
which the Company's Chairman of the Board of Doexts Vice Chairman and a director. Upon consuriomaif the agreement,
MacAndrews & Forbes and its permitted assigneesstad an initial $1,000,000 in SIGA in exchangeG®4,444 shares of our common
stock at a price of $1.44 per share and warranpsitchase 347,222 shares of common stock at aal iexercise price of $2.00 per share.
MacAndrews & Forbes and its permitted assigneeasralseived an option, exercisable through OctoBef@03, to invest up to an additional
$9,000,000 in SIGA on the same terms. Upon exedfiiee option in October 2003, we received gross
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proceeds of $2,159,405 in exchange for 1,499,58restof common stock at a price of $1.44 per saadewvarrants to purchase 749,794
shares of common stock at an initial exercise fck2.00 per share. In January 2004, upon appaiéle Company's shareholders,
MacAndrews & Forbes and its permitted assigneendrach Pharma, Inc., invested the remaining $658%0in exchange for 4,750,413
shares of common stock and warrants to purcha3®,2@6 shares of common stock at an exercise pfig2.00 per share. All warrants
issued under the agreement have a term of seves. yea

In June 2003, the Company raised gross procee®tk. Bfmillion in a private offering of 1,250,000 sks of common stock. In connection v
the offering the Company issued warrants to purlé@$,000 shares of the Company's common stodat¢ement agents. The warrants are
exercisable at a price of $2.00 per share and haeem of five years.

In May 2003, we acquired substantially all of tlssets of Plexus in exchange for 1,950,000 sharesrafommon stock and the assumptio
certain liabilities, including promissory notes foans we previously made to Plexus for $50,000%2GJ000.

In December 2002 and January 2003, we completedate placement of 34 units consisting of 1.7 imillshares of common stock to a
group of private investors. The gross proceeds fitmoffering were $1,865,000 with net proceedSI®A of approximately $1,682,000.

In October 2002, we completed a private placemeunnits consisting of an aggregate of 1,037,500eshaf common stock and warrants to
purchase 518,750 shares of common stock at anisxgnice of $2.25 per share to a group of priviatestors. The offering yielded net
proceeds of approximately $935,000.

See Item 12 for certain equity compensation infairmmawith respect to equity compensation plans.
Other Transactions

In 2004, the Company reached a settlement agredordmteach of contract with a founder of the Compavhereby the founder returned
40,938 common shares, 150,000 warrants and $1500@ Company. The common shares were retireiddbmpany. The Company
recorded the $15,000 settlement amount as othemiac

Item 6. Selected Financial Data (in thousands, exgeshare and per share data)

The following table sets forth selected financidbrmation derived from our audited consolidatethficial statements as of and for the years
ended December 31, 2004, 2003, 2002, 2001 and 2000.

Selling, general In-process
The year ended & Re searchand  Patent research and Impai rment of
December 31, Revenues administrative de velopment preparation fees development intang ible assets
2004 $1,839 $ 4,042 $ 4,165 $ 393 $ 568 $ 2,118
2003 $ 732 $ 2,646 $2,943 $ 300 $ 137
2002 $ 344 $1,838 $1,766 $ 105
2001 $1,160 $2,571 $1,733 $ 117
2000 $ 483 $4,851 $ 2,609 $ 107

Weighted average

The year ended Loss per share:  shares outstanding
December 31, Operating loss Net Loss basic & diluted basic & diluted
2004 $(9,448) $(9,373) $ (0.40) 23,724,026
2003 $ (5,296) $(5,277) $(0.34) 15,717,138
2002 $ (3,365) $(3,331) $(0.32) 10,450,529
2001 $ (3,262) $ (3,730) $ (0.44) 8,499,961
2000 $(7,084) $ (7,790) $ (1.08) 7,202,856
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Total Net cash used

As of and for the year Cash &c ash  stockholders' in operating
ended December 31, Total assets equivale nts equity activities
2004 $6,111 $2,02 1 $ 4,559 $ (4,890)
2003 $ 6,100 $1,44 1 $ 5,551 $ (5,332)
2002 $2,830 $2,06 9 $2,173 $(2,648)
2001 $ 4,208 $3,14 8 $ 3,541 $(2,944)
2000 $ 3,210 $1,70 7 $ 925 $ (3,938)

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjiorctvith our financial statements and notes to ¢hetatements and other financial
information appearing elsewhere in this Annual Rego addition to historical information, the folving discussion and other parts of this
Annual Report contain forward-looking informatidrat involves risks and uncertainties.

Overview

Since our inception in December 1995, we have peagipally engaged in the research and developminbvel products for the preventi
and treatment of serious infectious diseases, ditoguproducts for use in the defense against bickbgvarfare agents such as Smallpox and
Arenaviruses. The effort to develop a drug for Spumad is being aided by SBIR grants from the NIHatotg approximately $5.8 million that
were awarded in the third quarter of 2004 and & #iillion contract with the U.S. Army which beganJanuary 2003. The Arenavirus
program is being supported by SBIR grants fromNHe totaling approximately $6.3 million that werevarded in the third quarter of 2004.

Our anti-viral programs are designed to prevetinait the replication of the viral pathogen. Outtiainfectives programs are aimed at the
increasingly serious problem of drug resistances€hprograms are designed to block the abilityaotdria to attach to human tissue, the first
step in the infection process. We are also devetppitechnology for the mucosal delivery of ouromaes which may allow the vaccines to
activate the immune system at the mucus lined sesfaf the body -- the mouth, the nose, the lungstiae gastrointestinal and urogenital
tracts -- the sites of entry for most infectiougmtg.

We do not have commercial biomedical products,waadio not expect to have such products for seyesats, if at all. We believe that we
will need additional funds to complete the develepirof our biomedical products. Our plans with rega these matters include continued
development of our products as well as seekingtiaddi research support funds and financial arrareggs. Although we continue to pursue
these plans, there is no assurance that we willibeessful in obtaining sufficient financing omteracceptable to us. The financial staterr
do not include any adjustments that might resoltfthe outcome of this uncertainty. Managementbes it has sufficient funds and
projected cash flows to support operations beyoeceinber 31, 2005.

Our biotechnology operations are run out of oueagsh facility in Corvallis, Oregon. We continuesiek to fund a major portion of our
ongoing antiviral, antibiotic and vaccine progratms®ugh a combination of government grants andesira alliances. While we have had
success in obtaining strategic alliances and graontassurance can be given that we will continusetsuccessful in obtaining funds from
these sources. Until additional relationships atatdished, we expect to continue to incur sigaificresearch and development costs and
associated with the manufacturing of product fa imsclinical trials and pre-clinical testing. & éxpected that general and administrative
costs, including patent and regulatory costs, resagdo support clinical trials and research angetigment will continue to be significant in
the future.

To date, we have not marketed, or generated resenum the commercial sale of any products. Ouplémaceutical product candidates
not expected to be commercially available for seMgears, if at all.
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Accordingly, we expect to incur operating lossastifie foreseeable future. There can be no assuthatee will ever achieve profitable
operations.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The methods, estimates and judgments we use igiagmur accounting policies have a significant aopon the results we report in our
financial statements, which we discuss under tlaging "Results of Operations" following this sentiaf our MD&A. Some of our

accounting policies require us to make difficuldaubjective judgments, often as a result of thedne make estimates of matters that are
inherently uncertain. Our most critical account@ggimates include the assessment of recoverabiligpodwill, which impacts goodwiill
impairments; assessment of recoverability of Idugd assets, which primarily impacts operating imeavhen we impair intangible assets.
Below, we discuss these policies further, as wetha estimates and judgments involved. We alse biwer policies that we consider key
accounting policies, such as for revenue recognitiowever, these policies do not require us toaregtimates or judgments that are difficult
or subjective.

Significant Accounting Policies

The following is a brief discussion of the morersfigant accounting policies and methods used binule preparation of our financial
statements. Note 2 of the Notes to the Consolidateancial Statements includes a summary of athefsignificant accounting policies.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from contract relseard development and research progress paynmeatsardance with SEC Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 104, Revenue RecognitidigAB 104"). In accordance with SAB 104, revenueeisognized when persuasive
evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery hagroed, the fee is fixed and determinable, collélitybis reasonably assured, contractual
obligations have been satisfied and title and ofsloss have been transferred to the customer Cidmpany recognizes revenue from non-
refundable up-front payments, not tied to achiedrgpecific performance milestone, over the penwbith the Company is obligated to
perform services or based on the percentage of ousirred to date, estimated costs to completd@atiexpected contract revenue.
Payments for development activities are recognégerkbvenue is earned, over the period of effotbsBuntive at-risk milestone payments,
which are based on achieving a specific performanitestone, are recognized as revenue when thetmile is achieved and the related
payment is due, providing there is no future serabligation associated with that milestone. lnatibns where the Company receives
payment in advance of the performance of serviexgsh amounts are deferred and recognized as reasrthe related services are perforn

Goodwill

Goodwill is recorded when the purchase price paichh acquisition exceeds the estimated fair vafube net identified tangible and
intangible assets acquired.

The Company performs an annual review in the foquirter of each year, or more frequently if intiea of potential impairment exist, to
determine if the carrying value of the recordeddyad is impaired. Goodwill impairment is determihesing a two-step approach in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accountitejm&ards No. 142 "Goodwill and Other Intangible &s$ ("SFAS 142"). The impairme
review process compares the fair value of the temgpunit in which goodwill resides to its carryinglue. In 2004, the Company operated as
one business and one reporting unit. Thereforegdloelwill impairment analysis was performed onlthsis of the Company as a whole using
the market capitalization of the Company as amegé of its fair value. The estimated fair valugghproduce significantly different results
if other reasonable assumptions and estimatestadre used.

Identified Intangible Assets

Acquisition-related intangibles include acquiredhi@ology, customer contracts, grants and covemantt®o compete, and are amortized on a
straight line basis over periods ranging from 3yedrs.
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In accordance with Statement of Financial Accountandards No. 144 "Accounting for the Impairm@nbisposal of Long-Lived

Assets" ("SFAS 144"), the Company performs a revaéits identified intangible assets to determiit@¢ts and circumstances exist which
indicate that the useful life is shorter than aradly estimated or that the carrying amount of &ss®y not be recoverable. If such facts and
circumstances do exist, the Company assessesdberability of identified intangible assets by quaring the projected undiscounted net
cash flows associated with the related asset apgod assets over their remaining lives against tiespective carrying amounts. Impairment,
if any, is based on the excess of the carrying arnover the fair value of those assets.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123Rat&Based Payment." SFAS No. 123R requires emplstyek options and rights to
purchase shares under stock participation plabs ccounted for under the fair value method, dindreates the ability to account for these
instruments under the intrinsic value method piibsdrby APB Opinion No. 25, and allowed under thiginal provisions of SFAS No. 123.
SFAS No. 123R requires the use of an option priaoglel for estimating fair value, which is amortize expense over the service periods.
The requirements of SFAS No. 123R are effectiveifmal periods beginning after June 15, 2005. SR&S123R allows for either
prospective recognition of compensation expensetaospective recognition, which may be back todtiginal issuance of SFAS No. 123 or
only to interim periods in the year of adoptioneTl®ompany is currently evaluating these transit@thods.

In March 2004, the Emerging Issues Task Force s&ili€éF 03-06, "Participating Securities and the T@lass Method under FASB
Statement No. 128". This statement provides additiguidance on the calculation and disclosureirements for earnings per share. The
FASB concluded in EITF 086 that companies with multiple classes of comntonksor participating securities, as defined by SAX%o. 128
calculate and disclose earnings per share bast#tedwo-class method. The adoption of this statémdighnot have an impact to our financial
statements presentation as the Company is in gbtxsgon.

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth certain consolidas¢atements of income data as a percentage oévetue for the periods indicated:

2004 2003 2002
Revenue 100% 100% 100%
Selling, general and administrative 220% 362% 534%
Research and development 227% 402% 513%
Patent preparation fees 21% 41% 31%
In-process research and development 31% 0% 0%
Impairment of intangible assets 115% 19% 0%
Operating loss 514% 723% 978%

Years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

Revenues from grants and research and developroetmacts approximated $1,839,200 for the year efmber 31, 2004 compared to
$731,700 for the year ended December 31, 2003appeoximate 151% increase is the result of the dwhatwo Phase | and two Phase Il
SBIR grants by the NIH during the third quarte2604. The Phase Il grants are for a two year paating in the third quarter of 2006. The
total grant award was for approximately $12.1 milli For the year ended December 31, 2004 we redoedenue of $1,049,600 from these
grants. We also received a one year SBIR grant fremiNIH for $252,000 in August 2004 to support 8tnep vaccine program. For the year
ended December 31, 2004 we recorded revenue dd@BH,om this grant. Revenue from our contract whih U.S. Army was $425,100 for
2004; compared to $315,300 for the year ended DeeeBi, 2003. The approximate 35% increase wasadie higher budget for work
performed in 2004. For the year ended Decembe?2®14 we received revenue of $254,800 from an SB#Rtgor our DegP anti infective
that we
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completed in the second quarter of 2004. For tlze gaded December 31, 2003 we received $387,8@0tfis grant.

Revenue of $731,700 for the year ended Decemb&t(RB was approximately 112% higher than reven#&84#,450 for the year ended
December 31, 2002. The increase for the year eDdedmber 31, 2003 from the prior year reflects $200 in revenue from the first year of
our $1.6 million contract with the U.S. Army forowork on the development of a Smallpox drug. Rereeinom our Phase II Small Business
Innovation Research (SBIR) grant also increasedeRée from the SBIR grant for the year ended Deeer@h, 2003 was approximately
$388,000, an approximate 44% increase over thegraded December 31, 2002. The SBIR grant, whichaxta® year grant for a total of
$865,000, ended on May 31, 2004.

Selling, general and administrative expenses fytar ended December 31, 2004 were $4,042,000azenhfo expenses of $2,646,600 for
the year ended December 31, 2003. The increask 85,400, or approximately 53%, was primarily tuan increase of $628,000 in pay
expense, and a $693,000 increase in legal expePapll expenses increased by approximately 128ftgpily due to the addition of a Ch
Executive Officer and a Vice President

- Business Development, bonuses paid to emplogeeisthe costs associated with the termination@Bmployment Agreement with our
former President. The increase in legal expens@3 2 from 2003 was the result of the costs incltoereview and amend our corporate
governance policies and procedures to ensure canggiwith the regulations promulgated under thb&was Oxley Act of 2002, as well as
the NASDAQ stock market. Also contributing to tineriease in legal expenses were the costs incurreahinection with a potential business
combination, the sale of certain non-core vaccs®ets, the hiring of our new CEO, a legal acti@t te initiated against a former founder
and the work performed relative to the acquisitibeertain assets and grants from ViroPharma. &s&e in travel expense, rent, amortization
and filing fees were offset by decreases in deptigri, insurance and miscellaneous expenses.

The $2,646,600 of selling, general and administeagixpenses incurred for the year ended Decemb@0BB represented an increase of
approximately 44% from an expense of $1,838,50@Heryear ended December 31, 2002. Of the $808ibd6ase, approximately $553,000
was the result of higher consulting expenses aatativith our marketing program to find additiosaurces of government grant and con
funding and increased investor relations effortgprdaximately $184,000 of the increase was the teduhcreased payroll expense reflecting
the administrative employees who were added in ection with the acquisition of substantially alethssets of Plexus. In addition, the year
ended December 31, 2003 included non-cash expehspproximately $123,000 associated with the aizetibn of certain intangible assets
acquired in the Plexus transaction. These increases partially offset by lower legal and accougtfaes. For the year ended December 31,
2002 legal and accounting fees were approximatER6H00 higher than the expenses incurred in 28@Bearesult of work done in 2002 o
proposed merger.

Research and development expenses were $4,16580@ fyear ended December 31, 2004; an increasgpobximately 42% from the
$2,942,800 of expenses incurred for the year ebam@mber 31, 2003. Amortization expense of $635r8p€esented approximately 35% of
the increase. These expenses were the result atthasition of certain assets from Plexus in 2808 ViroPharma in 2004. Payroll expenses
increased approximately 28% to $1,654,000 for @@ $1,289,700 incurred in 2003. The increase tvasesult of the expansion of stafi
service the grants acquired from ViroPharma andibes paid to employees. Sponsored research indrbpsgpproximately 117% in 2004 to
$486,000 from $223,500 in 2003. The increase wasdbult of payments made to a Danish universitydioner Plexus programs, a payment
made to TransTech Pharma for work performed onBR §rant that was completed in the second quartdrpayments to Oregon State
University for work on the strep grant receive@d04. Expenses for lab supplies increased appraeiyna6% to $472,890 from $407,076 as
a result of accelerated development of our leadymrbprograms.

For the year ended December 31, 2003 researcheamdbppment expenses increased approximately 62,822,800 from $1,766,400 for
the same period in 2002. Approximately $504,00thefincrease was the result of 64% higher payrgease caused by the addition of
Plexus R&D personnel as well as additional staffirgour ongoing Smallpox and anti-infectives piangs. For the year ended December 31,
2003 we recognized non-cash charges of approxim@d2,000 for the amortization of certain intagissets acquired from Plexus; no
similar charges were recognized in the prior yeaaddition, lab supply expenses were approxim&kdly0,000, an increase of approximately
83% in the year ended December 31, 2003 from tioe pear spending level of
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approximately $219,000. The increase reflects am®d activity on our Smallpox and DegP programenSared research increased to
approximately $315,000, an 82% increase from tha gear. The increase was due to payment for weikg performed on former Plexus
programs at a Danish University.

All of our product programs are in the early stagdevelopment. At this stage of development, wenchmake estimates of the potential
for any program to be completed or the time it ¥éke to complete the project. There is a high oiskoncompletion of any program becat
of the lead time to program completion and uncetyadf the costs. Net cash inflows from any produwi#veloped from these programs is at
least one to three years away. However, we coukive additional grants, contracts or technologgrises in the short-term. The potential
cash and timing is not known and we cannot be iceiftthey will ever occur.

The risk of failure to complete any program is high each is in the relatively early stage of dgwalent. Products for the biological warfare
defense market, such as the Smallpox anti-viralldcbe available for sale in one to three years.béeve the products directed toward this
market are on schedule. We expect the future relseand development cost of this program to increashe potential products enter animal
studies and safety testing. Funds for future dearaknt will be partially paid for by NIH SBIR granthe contract we have with the U.S.
Army, additional government funding and from futdireancing. If we are unable to obtain additioreddral grants and contracts or fundin
the required amounts, the development timelingtfese products would slow or possibly be susperitieel clinical trials for our Strep
vaccine through Phase Il would be funded undergaeesnent with the NIH. The time to market for thisduct should be several years from
now because of the nature of the FDA requiremenmtagproval of a pediatric vaccine. We expect tadfthe development of the Strep
vaccine beyond the Phase Il clinical trials throagtorporate collaboration or from additional furglfrom debt or equity financings. We do
not yet have a corporate partner for this prodadtthere is no assurance that we will ever haveoortieat we will be able to raise the funds
needed to go forward. If the funding is not avdiadr the clinical trials are not successful, thegpam could be delayed or cancelled. We
believe this product program is on schedule. Delaguspension of any of our programs could havadwerse impact on our ability to raise
funds in the future, enter into collaborations wititporate partners or obtain additional federatifng from contracts or grants.

Patent preparation expenses for the year endechibere31, 2004 were $393,100 an approximate 31%aser from expenses of $300,500
incurred in 2003. The increase was the result@®eased costs arising from the Plexus and ViroPaasset acquisitions. The $300,500 of
expense incurred in 2003 was an approximate 18¢%ase over the $104,700 expense incurred in 20082¢esult of increased costs of pa
work required on the intellectual property acquimethe Plexus transaction, including foreign paféimgs.

For the year ended December 31, 2004, as a rddtik acquisition of certain government grants tmal early stage antiviral programs,
Smallpox and Arenavirus, targeting certain agehtsaogical warfare, from ViroPharma, $568,329 vimsnediately expensed as purchased
in-process research and development ("IPRD"). Theunt expensed as IPRD was attributed to techndluagyhas not reached technological
feasibility and has no alternate future use. THeevallocated to IPRD was determined using thernmeapproach that included an excess
earnings analysis reflecting the appropriate costapital for the purchase. Estimates of futurghddows related to the IPRD were made for
both the Smallpox and Arenavirus programs. Theegage discount rate of approximately 55% utilizediscount the programs' cash flows
were based on consideration of the Company's wagiiglwerage cost of capital, as well as other factocluding the stage of completion and
the uncertainty of technology advances for thesgnams. If the programs are not successful or cetaglin a timely manner, the Company's
product pricing and growth rates may not be achlieared the Company may not realize the financiatbitnexpected from the programs.

For the year ended December 31, 2004 we recor@2¢l48,200 non-cash loss on impairment of asse@etember 2004, upon completion
of the ViroPharma transaction, integration of tekated acquired programs into the Company's opergtand the demonstrated antiviral
activity of the Company's lead smallpox compoundiast several mouse models of poxvirus diseaseonenenced an application process
for additional government grants to support ourticared efforts under the Smallpox and Arenavirusvaal programs. We determined that
significant efforts and resources will be necessaiguccessfully continue the development effoniden these programs and decided to
allocate the necessary resources to support itenéioment. As a result, limited resources will be itakzle for the development of future
product candidates that utilize the technology aegurom Plexus
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in May 2003. These factors resulted in a significaduction in forecasted revenues related totdetnology and a reduction in the future
remaining useful life, and triggered the relatedmgible asset impairment. The amount of impairmeodrded by us in December 2004 was
determined using the two-step process impairmesmevieas required by SFAS 144. In the first step,compared the projected undiscounted
net cash flows associated with the technology aeddirom Plexus over its remaining life againstcisrying amount. We determined that the
carrying amount of the technology acquired fromxBseexceeded its projected undiscounted cash flmwhe second step, we estimated the
fair value of the technology using the income mdthbvaluation, which included the use of estimadetounted cash flows. Based on our
assessment, we recorded a non-cash impairmentechhagpproximately $1.5 million in December 2004jeh was included as a component
of our operating loss. In May 2004, we performedmapairment review of our intangible assets in adaace with SFAS 144 in connection
with the sale of certain intangible assets fromioumunological bioinformatics technology and certaon-core vaccine development to a
privately-held company, Pecos Labs, Inc. ("Pecd&8.recorded an impairment charge of $307,000a@thnts transferred to Pecos and
$303,000 to the covenant not to compete with oasiBlent who was terminated during the current peaod.

For the year ended December 31, 2003, we incurlesisson impairment of assets as a result of takingn-cash charge of $137,000 to the
intangible assets acquired in the Plexus transattioeflect the termination of a research agre¢nidm similar charge was incurred in 2002.

Total operating loss for the year ended Decembe2@04 was $9,448,300 compared to a loss of $3P84pr 2003. Of the current loss,
$2,686,500 was the result of non-cash chargesrieddor the impairment of assets and recognitioimgfrocess research and development
expense. Excluding these expenses, the currentogsawas approximately 28% higher than the préaryThe increase in the loss was due to
higher selling, general and administrative expensigher research and development expenses andrtpgtent costs as described in detail
above. These increases were partially offset byeased revenue.

Total operating loss for the year ended Decembg@303 was $5,294,900, an approximate 57% increasethe $3,365,100 loss incurred

for the year ended December 31, 2002. The incrieabe loss is the result of higher selling, geharal administration expenses and research
and development expenses as described above|lpatiset by higher revenues. Approximately 27%iloé increase in the net loss was the
result of non-cash charges incurred in the yeae@mkecember 31, 2003.

Other income was $75,000 in the year ended Dece&ihe?004 an increase of approximately 311% froen$th8,300 for the year ended
December 31, 2003. The increase was mainly dugtéoeist income related to higher cash balancea@@®04 compared to 2003. In 2004
also received other income of $15,000 as the restite settlement of a legal action with a forfemder.

Other income of $18,300 for the year ended Decerdbg2003 was approximately 46% lower than the lB3lrecognized for the year ended
December 31, 2002 and reflected a reduction iréstencome due to lower cash balances and intgields in the year ended December 31,
2003 compared to prior year.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2004 we had $2,020,938 in caditash equivalents. We believe that these fundoanprojected cash flows are
sufficient to support our operations beyond Decan3ie 2005, and that sufficient cash flows willdeailable to meet our business objecti

In August 2004, we acquired certain governmenttgrand two early stage antiviral programs, Smaligad Arenavirus, targeting certain
agents of biological warfare from ViroPharma fguuachase price of $1,000,000 in cash and 1,000s886es of our common stock. As pal
the closing, we were awarded Phase | and Il SB&Rtgrfrom the NIH totaling approximately $12.1 ioifl, which will be received over the
next two years, for the development of drugs fertdeatment of Smallpox and Arenavirus as noted@bo

In May 2004, we sold intangible assets from our imological bioinformatics technology and certaimfumre vaccine development assets to
a privately-held company, Pecos Labs, Inc. ("Pédosgxchange for 150,000 shares of Pecos comnaoh.sAs a result of this transaction,
we performed an impairment review of the intangible
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assets and concluded that the carrying amountrigindransferred intangible assets of $307,063lavaot be recoverable. In addition, we
terminated our employment agreement with our PeggidVe paid approximately $270,000 in severanaaitdormer President as well as
accelerated vesting on 100,000 stock options tlkea¢wue to vest in May 2004. No compensation chagagerecorded as the exercise price of
the options was above the fair value market pricéhe date of termination. In addition, we reduttezlcovenant not to compete with our
former President to one year from the date of teativn. We recognized $303,000 of impairment touhamortized covenant not to compete
with our former President due to the reductionhef tovenant to one year from the date of terminatio

In August 2003, we entered into an agreement wisttAMdrews & Forbes Holdings Inc. ("MacAndrews & Bes"), a holding company of
which the Company's Chairman of the Board of Doexts Vice Chairman and a director. Upon consurionaif the agreement,
MacAndrews & Forbes and its permitted assigneesstad an initial $1,000,000 in SIGA in exchange6®4,444 shares of our common
stock at a price of $1.44 per share and warranpsitchase 347,222 shares of common stock at aal iexercise price of $2.00 per share.
MacAndrews & Forbes and its permitted assigneeasralseived an option, exercisable through OctoBef@03, to invest up to an additional
$9,000,000 in SIGA on the same terms. Upon exedfiiee option in October 2003, we received grase@eds of $2,159,405 in exchange
for 1,499,587 shares of common stock at a pricklof4 per share and warrants to purchase 749, #ésshf common stock at an initial
exercise price of $2.00 per share. In January 200dn approval of the Company's shareholders, Mdodwms & Forbes and its permitted
assignees invested the remaining $6,840,595 inaegehfor 4,750,413 shares of common stock and wiarta purchase 2,375,206 shares of
common stock at an exercise price of $2.00 pershdrwarrants issued under the agreement haeena ¢f seven years.

In June 2003, the Company raised gross procee®tk. Bfmillion in a private offering of 1,250,000 skés of common stock. In connection v
the offering, the Company issued warrants to puget@25,000 shares of the Company's common stqulkéement agents. The warrants are
exercisable at a price of $2.00 per share and haeem of five years.

In May 2003, we acquired substantially all of tlssets of Plexus in exchange for 1,950,000 sharesrafommon stock and the assumptio
certain liabilities, including promissory notes foans we previously made to Plexus for $50,000%2GJ000.

In December 2002 and January 2003, we completedate placement of 34 units consisting of 1.7 imillshares of common stock to a
group of private investors. The gross proceeds fitmffering were $1,865,000 with net proceedSI®A of approximately $1,682,000.

We anticipate that our current resources will bificgant to finance our currently anticipated nedolsoperating and capital expenditures
approximately beyond December 31, 2005. In additieawill attempt to generate additional workingital through a combination of
collaborative agreements, strategic alliancesarebegrants, equity and debt financing. Howeverassurance can be provided that additional
capital will be obtained through these source# ahtained, will be on commercially reasonablertsr

Our working capital and capital requirements wédpend upon numerous factors, including pharmaautsearch and development
programs; pre-clinical and clinical testing; timiagd cost of obtaining regulatory approvals; lewéleesources that we devote to the
development of manufacturing and marketing capagsti technological advances; status of competitord our ability to establish
collaborative arrangements with other organizations
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Contractual Obligations, Commercial Commitments andPurchase Obligations

As of December 31, 2004, our purchase obligatioesiat material. We lease certain facilities arficefspace under operating leases.
Minimum future rental commitments under operati@gses having non-cancelable lease terms in extesg gear are as follows:

Year ended December 31,

2005 $ 239,700
2006 255,400
2007 261,800
2008 133,200
2009 135,900
2010 22,700
Total $ 1,048,700

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
SIGA does not have any off-balance sheet arrangesmen
Risk Factors That May Affect Results of Operationsaand Financial Condition

This report contains forward-looking statements atibr prospective information relating to futuremts. These forward-looking statements
and other information are subject to risks and ttaggties that could cause our actual results fferdmaterially from our historical results or
currently anticipated results including the follogi

We have incurred operating losses since our inge@nd expect to incur net losses and negativeftasHor the foreseeable future.

We incurred net losses of approximately $9.4 milli$5.3 million and $3.3 million for the years edd@ecember 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. As of December 31, 2004, 2003 and®200r accumulated deficit was approximately $4dition, $34.8 million and $29.5
million, respectively. We expect to continue tounsignificant operating expenditures. We will néedjenerate significant revenues to
achieve and maintain profitability.

We cannot guarantee that we will achieve sufficienenues for profitability. Even if we do achiguefitability, we cannot guarantee that we
can sustain or increase profitability on a quayterlannual basis in the future. If revenues grimwer than we anticipate, or if operating
expenses exceed our expectations or cannot betedijscordingly, then our business, results ofatpmrs and financial condition will be
materially and adversely affected. Because outegfyamight include acquisitions of other businesaeguisition expenses and any cash used
to make these acquisitions will reduce our avadatash.

Our business will suffer if we are unable to raiséitional equity funding.

We continue to be dependent on our ability to reis@ey in the equity markets. There is no guarathigewe will continue to be successfu
raising such funds. If we are unable to raise amttid equity funds, we may be forced to discontibueease certain operations. We currently
have sufficient operating capital to finance ouem@ions beyond December 31, 2005. Our annual tipgnaeeds vary from year to year
depending upon the amount of revenue generatedghrgrants and licenses and the amount of projestsndertake, as well as the amount
of resources we expend, in connection with acqaisstall of which may materially differ from year year and may adversely affect our
business.
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Our stock price is, and we expect it to remainatitd, which could limit investors' ability to sedtock at a profit.

The volatile price of our stock makes it difficédir investors to predict the value of their invesii to sell shares at a profit at any given ti
or to plan purchases and sales in advance. A yaridactors may affect the market price of our coom stock. These include, but are not
limited to:

o publicity regarding actual or potential clinicabults relating to products under developmentunycompetitors or us;
o delay or failure in initiating, completing or dyzing pre-clinical or clinical trials or the unsgsfactory design or results of these trials;
0 achievement or rejection of regulatory approbgi®ur competitors or us;

0 announcements of technological innovations or cemmercial products by our competitors or us;

o developments concerning proprietary rights, iditlg patents;

o developments concerning our collaborations;

o regulatory developments in the United Statesfaragn countries;

0 economic or other crises and other external farto

o period-to-period fluctuations in our revenues atiter results of operations;

o changes in financial estimates by securitiesyataland

o sales of our common stock.

Additionally, because there is not a high voluméradling in our stock, any information about SIGAhe media may result in significant
volatility in our stock price.

We will not be able to control many of these fast@nd we believe that period-to-period comparisdreir financial results will not
necessarily be indicative of our future performance

In addition, the stock market in general, and tlaekat for biotechnology companies in particulas baperienced extreme price and volume
fluctuations that may have been unrelated or dmteonate to the operating performance of indigidtcompanies. These broad market and
industry factors may seriously harm the marketgpatour common stock, regardless of our opergigrfprmance.

We are in various stages of product developmentlaerd can be no assurance of successful comnizatiah.

In general, our research and development prograenatan early stage of development. Our biologiaafare defense products do not need
human clinical trials for approval by the FDA. Wélweed to perform two animal models and providésy data for a product to be
approved. Our other products will be subject toghproval guidelines under FDA regulatory requirataevhich include a number of phases
of testing in humans.

The FDA has not approved any of our biopharmacelpicoduct candidates. Any drug candidates develtyyeus will require significant
additional research and development efforts, irinlyi@xtensive pre-clinical and clinical testing ardulatory approval, prior to commercial
sale. We cannot be sure our approach to drug désgavill be effective or will result in the develment of any drug. We cannot expect that
any drugs resulting from our research and developeieorts will be commercially available for mapgars, if at all.

We have limited experience in conducting pre-chhitesting and clinical trials. Even if we receindially positive pre-clinical or clinical
results, such results do not mean that similartesull be obtained in the later stages of drugedepment, such as additional pre-clinical
testing or human clinical trials. All of our potéitdrug
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candidates are prone to the risks of failure inhieire pharmaceutical product development, includhegpossibility that none of our drug
candidates will or can:

o be safe, non-toxic and effective;

o otherwise meet applicable regulatory standards;

o receive the necessary regulatory approvals;

o develop into commercially viable drugs;

0 be manufactured or produced economically and lange scale;
o be successfully marketed;

o be reimbursed by government and private insuears;

0 achieve customer acceptance.

In addition, third parties may preclude us from keging our drugs through enforcement of their pietary rights, that we are not aware of
third parties may succeed in marketing equivalersuperior drug products. Our failure to develofe seommercially viable drugs would h
a material adverse effect on our business, findnordition and results of operations.

Most of our immediately foreseeable future reverarescontingent upon grants from the United Stgte®rnment, and collaborative and
license agreements and we may not achieve sufficéeenues from these agreements to attain prdfijab

Until and unless we successfully make a produatability to generate revenues will largely dependour ability to enter into additional
collaborative and license agreements with thirdipaiand maintain the agreements we currently mpéace. Substantially all of our
revenues for the years ended December 31, 2008,&2002002, respectively, were derived from revemakated to grants, contracts and
license agreements. We will receive little or neergues under our collaborative agreements if ollalsarators' research, development or
marketing efforts are unsuccessful, or if our agreets are terminated early. Additionally, if wertdat enter into new collaborative
agreements, we will not receive future revenuesifnew sources. Our future revenue is substantigpendent on the continuing grant and
contract work being performed for the NIH under twajor grants which expire in September 2006 apdXt8. Army which expires at the
end of December 2007. These agreements are fafispeark to be performed under the agreementsa@ndd only be canceled by the other
party thereto for non-performance by the othenptmtreto.

Several factors will affect our future receipt efenues from collaborative arrangements, incluttiegamount of time and effort expended by
our collaborators, the timing of the identificatiohuseful drug targets and the timing of the sy and development of drug candidates.
Under our existing agreements, we may not earrifgignt milestone payments until our collaboratbese advanced products into clinical
testing, which may not occur for many years, ifilat

We have material agreements with the followingatodirators:

o National Institutes of Health. Under our colladtore agreement with the NIH we have received SBIRnts totaling approximately $12.1
million in 2004. The term of these grants expir&aptember 2006. We are paid as the work is peddrand the agreement can be cancelled
for non-performance. We also have an agreementelilzghe NIH is required to conduct and pay fordheical trials of our strep vaccine
product through phase Il human trials. The NIH taminate the agreement on 60 days written nolficerminated, we receive copies of all
data, reports and other information related tottiads. If terminated, we would have to find anatkeurce of funds to continue to conduct the
trials. We are current in all our obligations undar agreements.

0 The Rockefeller University. The term of our agneat with Rockefeller is for the duration of thegyas and a number of pending patents.
As we do not currently know when any patents pegndin
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future patents will expire, we cannot at this tidedinitively determine the term of this agreemdiiite agreement can be terminated earlier if
we are in breach of the provisions of the agreerapdtdo not cure the breach in the allowed curimgewe are current in all obligations
under the contract.

o Oregon State University ("OSU"). OSU is a signataf our agreement with Rockefeller. The termha§ tagreement is for the duration of
patents and a number of pending patents. As wedtlounrently know when any patents pending or ijpmtents will expire, we cannot at !
time definitively determine the term of this agresm The agreement can be terminated earlier din@en breach of the provisions of the
agreement and do not cure the breach in the all@wezlperiod. We are current in all obligations emithe contract. We have also entered
a subcontract agreement with OSU for us to perfeork under a grant OSU has from the NIH. The sutreghagreement was renewable
annually and the current terms expired on Augus2803. Work on this agreement was completed ir8200

0 Wyeth. Our license agreement expires on theesarfiJune 30, 2007 or the last to expire pateattwle have sub-licensed to them. Wyeth
has the right to terminate the agreement on 90 @ayten notice. If terminated, all rights grantedWyeth will revert to us, except for any
compound identified by Wyeth prior to the datearhtination and subject to the milestones and rgyadtigations of the agreement.

0 Washington University. We have licensed certaghbology from Washington under a non-exclusivenge agreement. The term of our
agreement with Washington is for the duration ef platents and a number of pending patents. As wetecurrently know when any patents
pending or future patents will expire, we cannahé time definitively determine the term of tlligreement. The agreement cannot be
terminated unless we fail to pay our share of ¢t jpatent costs for the technology licensed. \Westcurrently met all our obligations under
this agreement.

0 Regents of the University of California. We hdicensed certain technology from Regents underxafusive license agreement. We are
required to pay minimum royalties under this agreemThis agreement is related to our agreemehtWiteth and expires at the same time
as that agreement. It can be cancelled earlieeifi@fault on our obligations or if Wyeth cancetsagreement with SIGA and we are not able
to find a replacement for Wyeth. We have currentht all our obligations under this agreement.

0 U.S. Army Medical Research Acquisition Activitp. December 2002, we entered into a four yearsraonwith the U.S. Army Medical
Research Acquisition Activity (USAMRAA) to devel@pdrug to treat Smallpox. We are current in all @oligations under our agreement.

o TransTech Pharma, Inc. Under our collaborative@gent with TransTech Pharma, TransTech Pharnegisred to collaborate with us on
the discovery, optimization and development of leachpounds to therapeutic agents. We and TransHleatma have agreed to share the
costs of development and revenues generated foemsing and profits from any commercialized proslseties. The agreement will be in
effect until terminated by the parties or upon aéies of research or sales of all products develapeler the agreement. We are current in all
obligations under this agreement.

The biopharmaceutical market in which we competewifi compete is highly competitive.

The biopharmaceutical industry is characterizedapyd and significant technological change. Ourcsss will depend on our ability to
develop and apply our technologies in the desighdavelopment of our product candidates and tdkstaand maintain a market for our
product candidates. There also are many compayo#is public and private, including major pharmagzitand chemical companies,
specialized biotechnology firms, universities atloeo research institutions engaged in developiragmphaceutical and biotechnology produ
Many of these companies have substantially grét@ncial, technical, research and development,tamdan resources than us. Competitors
may develop products or other technologies thatranee effective than any that are being
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developed by us or may obtain FDA approval for piaigl more rapidly than us. If we commence commksailes of products, we still must
compete in the manufacturing and marketing of qurcllucts, areas in which we have no experienceyMéathese companies also have
manufacturing facilities and established marketiagabilities that would enable such companies tkketaompeting products through
existing channels of distribution. Two companiethvgimilar profiles are VaxGen, Inc., which is dimyeng vaccines against anthrax,
Smallpox and HIV/AIDS; and Avant Immunotherapeutieg., which has vaccine programs for agents ololjical warfare.

Because we must obtain regulatory clearance tatebmarket our products in the United States, amnot predict whether or when we will
be permitted to commercialize our products.

A pharmaceutical product cannot be marketed irbtl& until it has completed rigorous pre-clinicadting and clinical trials and an extensive
regulatory clearance process implemented by the.Fharmaceutical products typically take many y&asatisfy regulatory requirements
and require the expenditure of substantial ressulepending on the type, complexity and novelthefproduct.

Before commencing clinical trials in humans, we traumit and receive clearance from the FDA by readran Investigational New Drug
("IND") application. Institutional review boards éithe FDA oversee clinical trials and such trials:

o must be conducted in conformance with the FDAdgaboratory practice regulations;
0 must meet requirements for institutional revievata oversight;

0 must meet requirements for informed consent;

0 must meet requirements for good clinical and rfesturing practices;

o0 are subject to continuing FDA oversight;

0 may require large numbers of test subjects; and

0 may be suspended by us or the FDA at any tirtésibelieved that the subjects participatinghage trials are being exposed to
unacceptable health risks or if the FDA finds deficies in the IND application or the conduct g trials.

Before receiving FDA clearance to market a prodwetmust demonstrate that the product is safe tiedtige on the patient population that
will be treated. Data we obtain from preclinicatladlinical activities are susceptible to varyingeipretations that could delay, limit or prev
regulatory clearances. Additionally, we have liditxperience in conducting and managing the clitils and manufacturing processes
necessary to obtain regulatory clearance.

If regulatory clearance of a product is grantei thearance will be limited only to those stated aonditions for which the product is
demonstrated through clinical trials to be safe @ffidacious. We cannot ensure that any compounrdldped by us, alone or with others, \
prove to be safe and efficacious in clinical triafsl will meet all of the applicable regulatoryuggments needed to receive marketing
clearance.

If our technologies or those of our collaborataes @leged or found to infringe the patents or piegpry rights of others, we may be sued or
have to license those rights from others on unfavierterms.

Our commercial success will depend significantlyooin ability to operate without infringing the pats and proprietary rights of third parties.
Our technologies, along with our licensors' andanliaborators' technologies, may infringe the ptt@r proprietary rights of others. If there
is an adverse outcome in litigation or an interfiersto determine priority or other proceeding roart or patent office, then we, or our
collaborators and licensors, could be subjectesigioificant liabilities, required to license dispdtrights from or to other parties and/or
required to cease using a technology necessaritp aut research, development and commercializafid present we are unaware of any or
potential infringement claims against our patentfpbo.

The costs to establish the validity of patentgjeéfend against patent infringement claims of otlaex$to assert infringement claims against
others can be expensive and time consuming, evbe utcome is favorable.
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An outcome of any patent prosecution or litigatibat is unfavorable to us or one of our licensarsatlaborators may have a material adv
effect on us. We could incur substantial costsafare required to defend ourselves in patent buitisght by third parties, if we participate in
patent suits brought against or initiated by ocerisors or collaborators or if we initiate suchssuiVe may not have sufficient funds or
resources in the event of litigation. Additionallye may not prevail in any such action.

Any conflicts resulting from third-party patent digptions and patents could significantly reduce ¢bverage of the patents owned, optioned
by or licensed to us or our collaborators and lionit ability or that of our collaborators to obtameaningful patent protection. If patents are
issued to third parties that contain competitiveanflicting claims, we, our licensors or our cblmators may be legally prohibited from
researching, developing or commercializing of pogproducts or be required to obtain licensethé&se patents or to develop or obtain
alternative technology. We, our licensors and/aramllaborators may be legally prohibited from ggpatented technology, may not be able
to obtain any license to the patents and technedogi third parties on acceptable terms, if atalinay not be able to obtain or develop
alternative technologies.

In addition, like many biopharmaceutical companves,may from time to time hire scientific personfarmerly employed by other
companies involved in one or more areas simildhécactivities conducted by us. We and/or theswiithgials may be subject to allegations of
trade secret misappropriation or other similarmokaas a result of their prior affiliations.

Our ability to compete may decrease if we do negadtely protect our intellectual property rights.

Our commercial success will depend in part on owar@ur collaborators' ability to obtain and maintpatent protection for our proprietary
technologies, drug targets and potential produntista effectively preserve our trade secrets. Beeat the substantial length of time and
expense associated with bringing potential prodiectsugh the development and regulatory clearanoegsses to reach the marketplace, the
pharmaceutical industry places considerable impogan obtaining patent and trade secret protectioa patent positions of pharmaceutical
and biotechnology companies can be highly uncegathinvolve complex legal and factual questions chinsistent policy regarding the
breadth of claims allowed in biotechnology patdrats emerged to date. Accordingly, we cannot predéectype and breadth of claims allov

in these patents.

We have licensed the rights to eight issued U.&npa and three issued European patents. Thesaphta/e varying lives and they are
related to the technology licensed from Rockefdllaiversity for the Strep and Gram-positive produtt/e have one additional patent
application in the U.S. and one application in Beroelating to this technology. We are joint owwith Washington University of seven
issued patents in the U.S. and one in Europe.ditiad, there are four cowned U.S. patent applications. These patentsoathé technolog
used for the gram-negative product opportunities.afé also exclusive owner of one U.S. patent laretU.S. patent applications. One of
these U.S. patent applications relates to our OpgBuct opportunities.

We included a summary of out patent positions d3emfember 31, 2004 in Part |, Item 1 of this docoime

We also rely on copyright protection, trade sectaisw-how, continuing technological innovation diegnsing opportunities. In an effort to
maintain the confidentiality and ownership of traderets and proprietary information, we requireeraployees, consultants and some
collaborators to execute confidentiality and invemtassignment agreements upon commencement tftmnship with us. These agreements
may not provide meaningful protection for our tragerets, confidential information or inventionghe event of unauthorized use or
disclosure of such information, and adequate reeseatiay not exist in the event of such unauthorimedor disclosure.

We may have difficulty managing our growth.

We expect to experience growth in the number ofemaployees and the scope of our operations. Thistgrhas placed, and may continue to
place, a significant strain on our management gquadations. Our ability to manage this growth wala&nd upon our ability to broaden our
management team and our ability to attract, hice an
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retain skilled employees. Our success will alscedeipon the ability of our officers and key emplay&® continue to implement and improve
our operational and other systems and to hirey tad manage our employees.

Our activities involve hazardous materials and swyject us to environmental regulatory liabilities.

Our biopharmaceutical research and developmenbiasdhe controlled use of hazardous and radioactigterials and biological waste. We
are subject to federal, state and local laws agdlations governing the use, manufacture, stottagredling and disposal of these materials
certain waste products. Although we believe thatsafety procedures for handling and disposindnes¢ materials comply with legally
prescribed standards, the risk of accidental coimiation or injury from these materials cannot beptetely eliminated. In the event of an
accident, we could be held liable for damages,thigdiability could exceed our resources. The aesle and development activities of our
company do not produce any unusual hazardous pidie do use small amounts of 32P, 35S and 3H;hwdrie stored, used and disposed
of in accordance with Nuclear Regulatory CommisgitNRC") regulations. We maintain liability insureain the amount of approximately
$5,000,000 and we believe this should be suffidiemover any contingent losses.

We believe that we are in compliance in all mategapects with applicable environmental laws seglfations and currently do not expec
make material additional capital expenditures forimnmental control facilities in the near termowkver, we may have to incur significant
costs to comply with current or future environmétdas and regulations.

Our potential products may not be acceptable imtheket or eligible for third party reimbursemeasulting in a negative impact on our
future financial results.

Any products successfully developed by us or ollaborative partners may not achieve market acoegtal he antibiotic products which we
are attempting to develop will compete with a numifenell-established traditional antibiotic druggnufactured and marketed by major
pharmaceutical companies. The degree of markeptamee of any of our products will depend on a neindf factors, including:

o the establishment and demonstration in the medacamunity of the clinical efficacy and safetysafch products,
o the potential advantage of such products ovestiagi treatment methods, and
o reimbursement policies of government and thirdyppayors.

Physicians, patients or the medical community imegal may not accept or utilize any products thatowour collaborative partners may
develop. Our ability to receive revenues and incavitle respect to drugs, if any, developed throughuse of our technology will depend, in
part, upon the extent to which reimbursement ferdbst of such drugs will be available from thiy payors, such as government health
administration authorities, private health careiiess, health maintenance organizations, pharmewgflis management companies and other
organizations. Third-party payors are increasimtjbputing the prices charged for pharmaceuticadlpets. If third-party reimbursement was
not available or sufficient to allow profitable eilevels to be maintained for drugs developedshgrwour collaborative partners, it could
adversely affect our business.

If our products harm people, we may experience yrbliability claims that may not be covered byurence.

We face an inherent business risk of exposure tengial product liability claims in the event thdrtigs we develop are alleged to cause
adverse effects on patients. Such risk existsfodyrcts being tested in human clinical trials, &l &s products that receive regulatory
approval for commercial sale. We may seek to oljgadduct liability insurance with respect to drwgs and/or or our collaborative partners
develop. However, we may not be able to obtain snsilrance. Even if such insurance is obtainablaaly not be available at a reasonable
cost or in a sufficient amount to protect us agdiasility.
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We may be required to perform additional clinicéls or change the labeling of our products ifavethers identify side effects after our
products are on the market, which could harm safléise affected products.

If we or others identify side effects after anyoof products, if any, after they are on the martetf manufacturing problems occur:
o regulatory approval may be withdrawn;

o reformulation of our products, additional clifitdals, changes in labeling of our products mayréquired;

o changes to or re-approvals of our manufacturdngifies may be required;

o sales of the affected products may drop signifiga

0 our reputation in the marketplace may suffer; and

o lawsuits, including class action suits, may bmught against us.

Any of the above occurrences could harm or presalis of the affected products or could increasetists and expenses of commerciali
and marketing these products.

The manufacture of genetically engineered commerisal time-consuming and complex process which dedgy or prevent
commercialization of our products, or may prevemt ability to produce an adequate volume for thexeasful commercialization of our
products.

Although our management believes that we havehligyao acquire or produce quantities of gendticangineered commensals sufficient to
support our present needs for research and oweqteal needs for our initial clinical developmerdgrams, management believes that
improvements in our manufacturing technology wélrequired to enable us to meet the volume andreqeirements needed for certain
commercial applications of commensal products. Bectxlbased on commensals have never been manefaciuia commercial scale. The
manufacture of all of our products will be subjecturrent GMP requirements prescribed by the FDAtber standards prescribed by the
appropriate regulatory agency in the country of O$ere can be no assurance that we will be abieatoufacture products, or have products
manufactured for us, in a timely fashion at acdalptguality and prices, that we or third party mi@eturers can comply with GMP, or that

or third party manufacturers will be able to marntfige an adequate supply of product.

Healthcare reform and controls on healthcare spgmuiiay limit the price we charge for any productd the amounts thereof that we can:

The U.S. federal government and private insureve lcansidered ways to change, and have changemhaheer in which healthcare services
are provided in the U.S. Potential approaches aadges in recent years include controls on heatttg@ending and the creation of large
purchasing groups. In the future, the U.S. goventmay institute further controls and limits on Ntmde and Medicaid spending. These
controls and limits might affect the payments waldaollect from sales of any products. Uncertaistiegarding future healthcare reform and
private market practices could adversely affectahility to sell any products profitably in the U/& present, we do not foresee any changes
in FDA regulatory policies that would adverselyeaff our development programs.

The future issuance of preferred stock may advweedéct the rights of the holders of our commarckt

Our certificate of incorporation allows our BoardDirectors to issue up to 10,000,000 shares depred stock and to fix the voting powers,
designations, preferences, rights and qualificatitimitations or restrictions of
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these shares without any further vote or actiothleystockholders. The rights of the holders of camrstock will be subject to, and could be
adversely affected by, the rights of the holderarof preferred stock that we may issue in the &utlihe issuance of preferred stock, while
providing desirable flexibility in connection withossible acquisitions and other corporate purpasegd have the effect of making it more
difficult for a third party to acquire a majorityf our outstanding voting stock, thereby delayingfedring or preventing a change in control.

Concentration of ownership of our capital stockldaielay or prevent change of control.

Our directors, executive officers and principalkc&twolders beneficially own a significant percentafjleur common stock and preferred stc
They also have, through the exercise or convediaertain securities, the right to acquire addiibcommon stock. As a result, these
stockholders, if acting together, have the abtlitgignificantly influence the outcome of corporattions requiring shareholder approval.
Additionally, this concentration of ownership maguve the effect of delaying or preventing a chamgeointrol of SIGA. At December 31,
2004, Directors, Officers and principal stockhollbeneficially owned approximately 48.1% of ourckto

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Aout Market Risk
None

33



Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Dat

Index to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2004

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders'
2004, 2003 and 2002..........cccceerrveeennnnn.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.........

and 2003........ccceeecvieeeecee e 36
ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002......... 37

Equity for the years ended December 31,



Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of SIGATechnologies, Inc.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated bzdasheets and the related consolidated statemieopi@tions, of changes in stockhold
equity and of cash flows present fairly, in all evédl respects, the financial position of SIGA Teglogies, Inc. at December 31, 2004 and
2003, and the results of their operations and ttash flows for each of the three years in theggeended December 31, 2004 in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted i thmited States of America. These financial statémare the responsibility of the
Company's management. Our responsibility is to@sgean opinion on these financial statements tasedr audits. We conducted our au
of these statements in accordance with the stasaditthe Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@sdited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtagsonable assurance about whether the finastaiaiments are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tildasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disds in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and gigntfestimates made by management, and evaluagngverall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits providesaonable basis for our opinion.

/'s/ PRI CEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

New Yor k, New Yor k
February 22, 2005
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ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents ......................
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses .........cccoceeeeiiieeeenne

Total current assets .........c.ccovveernnne

Property, plant and equipment, net .............
GOoOAWIll ..o

Intangible assets, net .
Other assets .......ccccevvveeeeviiieneenne

Total aSSets .......cvvvveeeeeeeiiiiiiiiinns

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payable .........cccccceveeeeiininnn.
Accrued expenses and other ..

Total liabilities .........ccccoeviveieennns
Commitments and contingencies

Stockholders' equity
Series A convertible preferred stock ($.0001 par

SIGA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
As of December 31, 2004 and 2003

December 31,
2004

108,904

............................... 508,015
898,334
2,114,297
181,725

403,072

value, 10,000,000 shares

authorized, 68,038 and 81,366 issued and outstan
and December 31, 2003, respectively) ...........
Common stock ($.0001 par value, 50,000,000 share
24,500,648 and 18,676,851 issued and outstandi
and December 31, 2003, respectively) .........
Additional paid-in capital .....................
Accumulated deficit ..........cccceeriiinnenn.

Total stockholders' equity ....................

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity ....

ding at December 31, 2004
............................... 58,672

s authorized,

ng at December 31, 2004

PRSPPI PRTPRN 2,450
e 48,679,650
............................... (44,181,361)

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfiancial statements.
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December 31,
2003

$ 1,440,724
38,786
50,338

1,529,848

379,046
898,334
3,117,357
174,995

195,181

72,666

1,868
40,284,856
(34,808,042)



SIGA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 200

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Revenues
Research and development ........cccccoeeeeee. Ll $ 1,839,182 $ 731,743 $ 344,450
Operating expenses
Selling, general and administrative .......... 4,041,973 2,646,586 1,838,470
Research and development .............cc...... 4,165,849 2,942,809 1,766,368
Patent preparation fees ......cccoeeeeeeeeee. 393,100 300,494 104,700
In-process research and development ......... ... 568,329 - -
Impairment of intangible assets ..............~ ... 2,118,219 136,750 -
Total operating expenses .......cceeeeeeee. e 11,287,470 6,026,639 3,709,538
Operating 10SS ....ccooevvvvvviiciicen (9,448,288)  (5,294,896) (3,365,088)
Otherincome, Net .....cooovevevviiiieeiiieeees 74,969 18,256 34,061
NEtIOSS ovvviiieiiiciiiceceee $(9,373,319) $(5,276,640) $ (3,331,027)
Deemed dividend related to beneficial conversion fe ature ..... -- - 29,200
Net loss applicable to common shareholders ... $(9,373,319) $(5,276,640) $ (3,360,227)
Weighted average shares outstanding: basic and dilu ted ....... 23,724,026 15,717,138 10,450,529
Net loss per share: basic and diluted ............ . ... $ (0400 $ (034 % (0.32)

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statements.
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SIGA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS'

For the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 200

Balance at January 1, 2002

Net proceeds from issuance of common stock ($1.00 t
Issuance of common shares upon exercise of stock op
Issuance of preferred stock to settle dividends pay
Amortization of deferred compensation

Stock options issued to non-employee

Deemed dividend related to beneficial conversion fe
Net loss

Balance at December 31, 2002

Net proceeds from issuance of common stock ($1.20 t
Issuance of common stock upon acquisition

Issuance of stock options and warrants upon acquisi
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock opt
Conversion of preferred stock for common stock
Issuance of preferred stock for anti-dilution

Stock options issued to non-employee

Receipt of stock subscriptions outstanding

Net loss

Balance at December 31, 2003

Net proceeds from issuance of common stock ($1.44 p
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock opt
Conversion of preferred stock for common stock

Stock issued in acquisition of intangible assets
Common stock retired upon settlement agreement with
Stock issued for services

Net loss

Balance at December 31, 2004

Series A
Convertible
Preferred Stock
Shares Amount
379,294 $ 398,441

0 $1.09 per share)

tions
able 31,466 45,233

ature

410,760 443,674

0 $1.44 per share)

tion
ions and warrants
(353,185) (371,008)
23,791

81,366 $ 72,666

er share)
ions and warrants
(13,328)  (13,994)

a founder

68,038 $ 58,672

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statements.

(Continued)
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EQUITY

Common Stock

Shares Amount
10,139,553 $ 1,016

2,737,500 274
25,000 3

12,902,053 1,293

3,444,031 344

1,950,000 195
27,582 3
353,185 33

18,676,851 $ 1,868

4,750,413 475
70,994 7
13,328 1

1,000,000 100

(40,938) (4
30,000 3

24,500,648 $ 2,450




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS'

SIGA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

For the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 200

Balance at January 1, 2002

Net proceeds from issuance of common stock
($1.00 to $1.09 per share)

Issuance of common shares upon exercise of stock op

Issuance of preferred stock to settle dividends pay
Amortization of deferred compensation

Stock options issued to non-employee

Deemed dividend related to beneficial conversion fe
Net loss

Balance at December 31, 2002

Net proceeds from issuance of common stock
($1.20 to $1.44 per share)

Issuance of common stock upon acquisition

Issuance of stock options and warrants upon acquisi

Issuance of common stock upon exercise of
stock options and warrants

Conversion of preferred stock for common stock

Issuance of preferred stock for anti-dilution

Stock options issued to non-employee

Receipt of stock subscriptions outstanding

Net loss

Balance at December 31, 2003

Net proceeds from issuance of common stock
($1.44 per share)

Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock
options and warrants

Conversion of preferred stock for common stock

Stock issued in acquisition of intangible assets

Common stock retired upon settlement agreement
with a founder

Stock issued for services

Net loss

Balance at December 31, 2004

Additional ~ Deferred Stock
Paid-in Comp-  Subscriptions
Capital ensation  Outstanding

$29,348,786 $ (35,583) $ -

2,559,924 (791,940)
tions 28,093
able
35,583
85,458

ature 29,200

32,051,461 - (791,940)

4,171,652
3,408,805
tion 255,873

24,715
370,975

1,375
791,940

$ 40,284,856 $ - $ -

6,784,131

69,369
13,993
1,479,900

4
47,397 -

$ 48,679,650 $ - $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfiancial statements.
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EQUITY

Total
Accumulated  Stockholders'
Deficit Equity

$ (26,171,175) $ 3,541,485

1,768,258
28,096

(29,200)
(3,331,027) (3,331,027)

4,171,996
3,409,000
255,873

24,718

1,375
791,940
(5,276,640)  (5,276,640)

$ (34,808,042) $ 5,551,348

6,784,606
69,376

1,480,000

47,400
(9,373,319) (9,373,319)

$ (44,181,361) $ 4,559,411




SIGA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 200

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net 10SS ...oovvviirieiieceeeieee e
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net
cash used in operating activities:

Year Ended Dece

2004

2003

mber 31,
2002

40) $(3,331,027)

In-process research and development ............ L. 568,329 - -
Impairment of intangible assets ............... 2,118,219 136,7 50 --
Bad debt expense - 26,0 00 --
Depreciation .............. 221,719 354,6 67 317,032
Amortization of intangible assets ............. 832,534 384,8 93 --
Stock based compensation ...................... 47,400 1,3 75 121,041
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable . (70,118) (4,6 35) (5,151)
Prepaid exXpenses ........cccccccvveeiennn. (231,210) 53,8 89 49,189
Other assets .......cccovcvveeivveiininnenn (6,729) (10,8 27) (16,295)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses ....... 1,003,117 (997,6 40) 216,926
Net cash used in operating activities ....... . L. (4,890,058) (5,332,1 68) (2,648,285)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of intangible assets ................. (1,033,022) - -
Capital expenditures .......ccccoovvvevvceee s (350,688) (273,5 60) (46,235)
Net cash flow used in investing activites .. (1,383,710) (273,5 60) (46,235)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock ...... 6,784,607 4,171,9 96 1,768,258
Receipts of stock subscriptions outstanding ..... -- 791,9 40 -
Proceeds from exercise of options and warrants .. 69,375 24,7 18 28,096
Principal payments on capital lease obligations . -- (11,2 06) (180,990)
Net cash provided from financing activites. .. 6,853,982 4,977,4 48 1,615,364
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivale NES covvviieeiins 580,214 (628,2 80) (1,079,156)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period .. 1,440,724 2,069,0 04 3,148,160
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period ...... e $ 2,020,938 $ 1,440,7 24 $ 2,069,004
Non-cash supplemental information:
Conversion of preferred stock to common stock ... e $ 13,994 $ 371,0 08 $ --
Transfer of intangible assets for investment in P ecos Labs, Inc..... $ 15,000 $ - $ -
Shares issued for acquisition of intangible asset $ 1,480,000 $ - $ -
Shares issued for Services ..........ccovuuu... $ 47,400 $ - $ --
Supplemental information of business acquired:
Fair value of assets acquired:
EqQUIpmMent ......cc.ocveeeevieieeeeiene. $ - $ 277 1 $ -
Intangible assets . - 3,639,0 00 -
(€Yo Lo 1V 1 - 898,3 34 -
Less, liabilities assumed and non-cash considerat
Current liabilities ........cccccvvevineenns - (494,1 42) -
Stock issued ..........cevvveivieiiiiiiriinnn. - (3,409,0 00) -
Stock options and warrants issued ............. -- (255,8 73) -
Accrued acquisition COStS ...........ccceeuees -- (460,0 30) -

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statements.
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SIGA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Organization and Basis of Presentation
Organization

SIGA Technologies, Inc. ("SIGA" or the "Company$)dngaged in the discovery, development and coniatizgation of vaccines, antibiotic
and novel anti-infectives for the prevention arehtment of infectious diseases, including prodfmtsise in defense against biological
warfare agents. SIGA applies bacterial and viralogeics in the design and development of its praluldie Company's product development
programs emphasize the increasingly serious probfesinug resistant bacteria and emerging pathogens.

Basis of presentation

The accompanying financial statements have begrapgd on a basis which assumes that the Compahgastinue as a going concern and
which contemplates the realization of assets aadatisfaction of liabilities and commitments ie thormal course of business. The Company
has incurred cumulative net losses and expectscto additional losses to perform further researuth development activities. The Company
does not have commercial products and has limipital resources. Management's plans with regatitetge matters include continued
development of its products as well as seekingtimthdil research support funds and financial arremeggs. Although management continues
to pursue these plans, there is no assurancenth&@dmpany will be successful in obtaining suffitifnancing on terms acceptable to the
Company. Management believes that its cash floesaificient to support its operations beyond Ddoen31, 2005, and that sufficient cash
flows will be available to meet the Company's bassobjectives. In the event that sufficient fuadsnot available, the Company will nee
postpone or discontinue planned operations an@gisojContinuance of the Company as a going conselependent upon, among other
things, the success of the Company's researcheraagpment programs and the Company's ability taintadequate financing. The financ
statements do not include any adjustments relairiige recoverability of the carrying amount oforted assets and liabilities that might
result from the outcome of these uncertainties.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Use of Estimates

The financial statements and related disclosurep@pared in conformity with accounting principtenerally accepted in the United States
of America. Management is required to make estimatel assumptions that affect the reported amaiiissets and liabilities, the disclos

of contingent assets and liabilities at the datéheffinancial statements and revenue and expelusag) the period reported. These estimates
include the realization of deferred tax assetsfuliiges and impairment of tangible and intangibksets, and the value of options and
warrants granted by the Company. Estimates andrgsins are reviewed periodically and the effe¢teuisions are reflected in the
financial statements in the period they are deteechto be necessary. Actual results could diffemfthese estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of short teighhjhliquid investments, with original maturitie§less than three months when purchased
and are stated at cost. Interest is accrued asdarn

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cestdecumulated depreciation. Depreciation is pexlioh the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the various asset clagsgsnated lives are 5 years for laboratory eqepin3 years for computer equipment; 7
years for furniture and fixtures; and the life bétlease for leasehold improvements. Maintenaepainrs and minor replacements are cha
to expense as incurred. Upon retirement or dispafsagsets, the cost and related accumulated dapoecare removed from the Balance
Sheet and any gain or loss is reflected in theeStant of Operations.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from contract relseard development and research payments in acmmdeth SEC Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 104, Revenue Recognition, ("SAB 104H) accordance with SAB 104, revenue is recognizBen persuasive evidence of an
arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, thésféred and
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determinable, collectibility is reasonably assuiahtractual obligations have been satisfied ateldnd risk of loss have been transferred to
the customer. The Company recognizes revenue fanvrefundable up-front payments, not tied to adhiga specific performance
milestone, over the period which the Company isgalbbd to perform services or based on the pergerdficosts incurred to date, estimated
costs to complete and total expected contract rexdPayments for development activities are re@aghas revenue as earned, over the p
of effort. Substantive at-risk milestone paymentsich are based on achieving a specific performamitestone, are recognized as revenue
when the milestone is achieved and the related payim due, providing there is no future servickgalbion associated with that milestone,
situations where the Company receives paymentvaraze of the performance of services, such amaugtdeferred and recognized as
revenue as the related services are performed.

For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 ar®] 2&@&nues from National Institute of Health ("NJI$BIR grants approximated 77%,
54% and 78%, respectively, of total revenues reizegnby the Company.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded net of provisfonsloubtful accounts. An allowance for doubtfutaants is based on specific analysis of
the receivables. At December 31, 2004, 2003 an@ #® Company had no allowance for doubtful accaunt

Research and development

Research and development expenses include costilyliattributable to the conduct of research aektbpment programs, including
employees related costs, materials, supplies, diggien on and maintenance of research equipmeadst of services provided by outside
contractors, and facility costs, such as rentitiessl, and general support services. All costs @ated with research and development are
expensed as incurred. Costs related to the adquisit technology rights, for which development W still in process, and that have no
alternative future uses, are expensed as incurred.

Goodwill

Goodwill is recorded when the purchase price paichfi acquisition exceeds the estimated fair vafuibe net identified tangible and
intangible assets acquired.

The Company performs an annual review in the foquirter of each year, or more frequently if intiea of potential impairment exist, to
determine if the carrying value of the recordeddyad is impaired. Goodwill impairment is determihesing a two-step approach in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accountitep&ards No. 142 "Goodwill and Other Intangible &s5 ("SFAS 142"). The impairme
review process compares the fair value of the tampunit in which goodwill resides to its carryinglue. In 2004, the Company operated as
one business and one reporting unit. Thereforegdloelwill impairment analysis was performed onlihsis of the Company as a whole, u:
the market capitalization of the Company as amregé of its fair value. The estimated fair valugghproduce significantly different results
if other reasonable assumptions and estimatestadre used.

Identified Intangible Assets

Acquisition-related intangible assets include ageflitechnology, customer contracts, grants andnaous not to compete, and are amortized
on a straight line basis over periods ranging f8514 years.

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accountandards No. 144 "Accounting for the Impairm@nbisposal of Long-Lived

Assets" ("SFAS 144"), the Company performs a revaéits identified intangible assets to determiftacts and circumstances exist which
indicate that the useful life is shorter than araly estimated or that the carrying amount of &ssey not be recoverable. If such facts and
circumstances do exist, the Company assessesdberability of identified intangible assets by quaring the projected undiscounted net
cash flows associated with the related asset ampgob assets over their remaining lives against tiespective carrying amounts. Impairment,
if any, is based on the excess of the carrying ahover the fair value of those assets. Changesents or circumstances that may affect
long-lived assets include, but are not limitedcancellations or terminations of research contracfgending government grants (Note 4).
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Income taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the assdiadnility method prescribed by Statement of Finahéiccounting Standards No. 109,
"Accounting for Income Taxes." Deferred income taee recorded for temporary differences betwewantiial statement carrying amounts
and the tax basis of assets and liabilities. Detketax assets and liabilities reflect the tax ratggected to be in effect for the years in which
the differences are expected to reverse. A valnatilmwance is provided if it is more likely thantrthat some or all of the deferred tax asset
will not be realized.

Net loss per common she

The Company computes, presents and discloses ganoén share in accordance with SFAS 128 "EarregsShare” ("EPS") which specifi
the computation, presentation and disclosure remeénts for earnings per share of entities withiplybheld common stock or potential
common stock. The statement defines two earningsh@e calculations, basic and diluted. The objedf basic EPS is to measure the
performance of an entity over the reporting pebgdlividing income (loss) by the weighted averalgares outstanding. The objective of
diluted EPS is consistent with that of basic ER&t is to measure the performance of an entity thesreporting period, while giving effect
all dilutive potential common shares that were taunging during the period. The calculation of dBWEPS is similar to basic EPS except the
denominator is increased for the conversion of @ecommon shares.

The Company incurred losses for the years endedrbieer 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 and as a resulbjic@dquity instruments are excluded
from the calculation of diluted loss per shareD&icember 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, 68,038, 81,368 40,760 shares, respectively, of the
Company's Series A convertible preferred stock Heen excluded from the computation of diluted lpsisshare as they are anti-dilutive. At
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, outstandingroptmpurchase 9,762,061, 6,460,811 and 5,807 &S, respectively, of the
Company's common stock with exercise prices ranfjorg $1.00 to $5.50 have been excluded from thepmdation of diluted loss per share
as they are anti-dilutive. At December 31, 2004Q28and 2002, outstanding warrants to purchase 58696,329,616 and 4,675,144 shares,
respectively, of the Company's common stock, wiireise prices ranging from $1.00 to $3.63 havenleeeluded from the computation of
diluted loss per share as they are anti-dilutive.

Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalentsats payable and accrued expenses approximateslfze due to the relatively short
maturity of these instruments.

Concentration of credit risk

The Company has cash in bank accounts that exbedeederal Deposit Insurance Corporation insuraddi The Company has not
experienced any losses on its cash accounts. Bwaallce has been provided for potential credit ssEause management believes that any
such losses would be minimal.

Stock compensation

The Company applies the recognition and measureprardiples of Accounting Principles Board Opinin. 25, "Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees" ("APB 25") and related intetations in accounting for its stotlesed compensation program. Accordingly, emplo
and directors' related compensation expense ignied only to the extent of the intrinsic valuetlod compensatory options or shares
granted.
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The following table illustrates the effect on netéme (loss) available to common stockholders andirgs (loss) per share as if the
Company had applied the fair value recognition @ions of SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Bagammpensation” ("SFAS 123"), as
amended by SFAS 148, "Accounting for Stock-Basemh@msation - Transaction and Disclosure, an amentiné-ASB Statement No.
123."

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Net loss applicable to common shareholders, as repo rted ... ($9,373,319) ($5,276,640) ($3 ,360,227)
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense
recorded under APB NO. 25 .....cooovvvvveenneeee -- - 35,583
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation
expense determined under fair value based method fo r
all awards, net of related tax effects ... .. (1,105,330) (687,766) (153,882)
Pro forma net loss applicable to common shareholder S . ($10,478,649) ($5,964,406) ($3 ,478,526)
Net loss per share:
Basic and diluted -as reported ..........cooceeee.. L $(0.40) $(0.34) $(0.32)
Basic and diluted -pro forma .......ccccoeoceeeeee.. L $(0.44) $(0.38) $(0.33)

The fair value of the options granted to employdasng 2004, 2003 and 2002 ranged from $0.09 t@35an the date of the respective grant
using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model.

The value of options granted in 2004, 2003 and 2082 estimated at the date of grant using theuiatig weighted average assumptions:

2004 2003 2002
Expected life 2-5Yr 3-5Yrs 3-5Yrs
Risk free interest rate 2.75% - 3.80% 2. 89% - 3.24% 2.87% - 4.5%
Volatility 74% - 107% 100% 100%
Dividend yield 0% 0% 0%

Segment information

The Company is managed and operated as one busiimessntire business is managed by a single mamagdeam that reports to the chief
executive officer. The Company does not operatarse@ lines of business or separate businessesntitth respect to any of its product
candidates. Accordingly, the Company does not peegicrete financial information with respect éparate product areas or by location and
only has one reportable segment as defined by S¥A3.31, "Disclosures about Segments of an Enta@nd Related Information”.

Recent accounting pronouncements

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123Raf&SBased Payment." SFAS No. 123R requires emplstpek options and rights to
purchase shares under stock participation plahs gccounted for under the fair value method, dindreates the ability to account for these
instruments under the intrinsic value method pibsdrby APB Opinion No. 25, and allowed under thiginal provisions of SFAS No. 123.
SFAS No. 123R requires the use of an option priaieglel for estimating fair value, which is amortize expense over the service periods.
The requirements of SFAS No. 123R are effectivdifmal periods beginning after June 15, 2005. SN&S123R allows for either
prospective recognition of compensation expensetoospective recognition, which may be back todfiginal issuance of SFAS No. 123 or
only to interim periods in the year of adoptioneTl®ompany is currently evaluating these transit@thods.

In March 2004, the Emerging Issues Task Force és&ili€F 03-06, "Participating Securities and the T@lass Method under FASB
Statement No. 128". This statement provides additiguidance on the calculation and disclosureirements for earnings per share. The
FASB concluded in EITF 03-06 that companies witHtipie
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classes of common stock or participating securidssiefined by SFAS No. 128, calculate and digck@snings per share based on the two-
class method. The adoption of this statement dichage an impact on the Company's financial statésnaresentation as the Company is in a
loss position.

3. Business Acquisitions and Other Transactions
Purchase of Intangible Assets

In August 2004, the Company acquired certain gawemt grants and two early stage antiviral progré®nsallpox and Arenavirus, targeting
certain agenda of biological warfare for a purchasee of $1,000,000 in cash and 1,000,000 shdreedCompany's common stock from
ViroPharma Incorporated ("ViroPharma") (the "Vir@®Pha Transaction"). Each program is in the eadgebf development and the
Company expects both programs to be completedliy @06. The shares issued to ViroPharma weredadti the closing date price.

The total purchase price of approximately $2.5iorillwas allocated to the acquired government grgit® million) and to purchased in-
process research and development ($464,000 altbtatee Smallpox program and approximately $10@ @the Arenavirus program)
("IPRD"). The grants are amortized over the contraldife of each grant or 2 years. The amount agpd as IPRD was attributed to
technology that has not reached technological bdagiand has no alternate future use. The valleeated to IPRD was determined using the
income approach that included an excess earnirajgsasreflecting the appropriate costs of cagdathe purchase. Estimates of future cash
flows related to the IPRD were made for both theafjiox and Arenavirus programs. The aggregate discate of approximately 55%
utilized to discount the programs' cash flows weaesed on consideration of the Company's weightetage cost of capital as well as other
factors, including the stage of completion anduheertainty of technology advances for these progrdf the programs are not successful or
completed in a timely manner, the Company's progticing and growth rates may not be achieved hadCiompany may not realize the
financial benefits expected from the programs.

Business Acquisition

On May 23, 2003, the Company acquired substantiligf the assets of Plexus Vaccine Inc., ("Pl8kasd assumed certain liabilities in
exchange for 1,950,000 shares of the Company's constock and 190,950 of the Company's options aardants at an exercise price of
$1.62 per share. The results of operations of Rl&ave been included in the Statement of Operatibtiee combined entity since May 23,
2003.

In determining the non-cash purchase price of Blethe equity consideration has been calculategidoas Emerging Issues Task Force
("EITF") No. 99-12, "Accounting for Formula Arrangents under EITF 95-19". For this calculation, @@mpany used the average market
price for a few days before and after May 14, 2@88,announcement date. Based on EITF 99-12, flne whthe common stock issued was
approximately $3,409,000. The value attributechtodptions and warrants exchanged was approximd2&y,900. In addition, loans made
Plexus, payments made on behalf of Plexus prithe@asset purchase agreement and costs incurréteftransaction amounted to $406,030.

The allocation of the total purchase price of $8,003 is as follows:

Useful Life Fair Value
Equipment, net 3 -7years $ 27,711
Liabilities assumed N/A (494,142)
Acquired technology 10 years 2,191,000
Customer contract and grants 3 1/2 years 741,000
Covenant not to compete 3 1/2 years 707,000
Goodwill Indefinite 898,334
Purchase Price $ 4,070,903

In May 2004, the Company sold certain intangiblets originally acquired from Plexus, to Pecos Liis ("Pecos”). See Note 4 "Intangi
Assets".
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Selected Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information

The Company has prepared a condensed pro fornesnsat of operations in accordance with SFAS 14lthie years ended December 31,
2003 and 2002 as if Plexus were part of the Compargf January 1, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Years Ended
December 31,

2003 2002
Revenues $ 826,525 $ 516,828
Net loss $(7,527,206) $(5,398,730)
Net loss per common share - basic and diluted $ (046) $ (0.44)
Weighted average number of common shares outstandin g 16,481,110 12,400,529

In the fourth quarter of 2003, a customer contaacfuired with the acquisition of Plexus was camcelManagement recorded an impairment
loss of $136,750, included in the Company's opagatixpenses for the year ended December 31, 2008f|¢ct the cancellation.

4. Intangible Assets

The following table presents the components ofGhmpany's acquired intangible assets with finitedi

Decembe r 31, 2004 December 31, 2003
Gross Gross
Carrying  Accu mulated Carrying  Accumulate d
Amount Amor tization Net Amount Amortizati on Net
Acquired grants $1,962,693 $ 327,118 $1,635575 $ - $ - - 3 -
Customer contract and grants 83,571 19,499 64,072 604,250 128,77 2 475,478
Covenants not to compete 202,000 117,833 84,167 707,000 122,86 0 584,140
Acquired technology 330,483 - 330,483 2,191,000 133,26 1 2,057,739
$2,578,747 $ 464,450 $2,114,297 $3,502,250 $ 384,89 3 $3,117,357
Amortization expense for intangible assets andscdostuded the following:
2004 2003

$ 327,118 %

Amortization of acquired grants

Amortization of customer contract and grants 89,344

Impairment of customer contract and grants 322,063 136,750

Amortization of covenants not to compete 196,972 122,860

Impairment of covenants not to compete 303,000 -

Amortization of acquired technology 219,100 133,261

Impairment of acquired technology 1,508,156 --
$2,965,753 $ 521,643

The Company anticipates amortization expense teoappate $1,182,000, $767,500, $82,600, and $82%@0the years ending December
2005, 2006, 2007, and 2008, respectively.

Impairment of Intangible Assets

In December 2004, upon completion of the ViroPhalremsaction, integration of the related acquiremhpmms into the Company's
operations, and the demonstrated antiviral activitthe Company's lead smallpox compound againgraemouse models of poxvirus
disease; management commenced an application primoesdditional
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government grants to support its continued effonder the Smallpox and Arenavirus antiviral proggaManagement determined that
significant efforts and resources will be necessaiguccessfully continue the development effoniden these programs and decided to
allocate the necessary resources to support itsnéioment. As a result, limited resources will be itakzle for the development of future
product candidates that utilize the technology aeqgurom Plexus in May 2003. These factors resliftea significant reduction in forecasted
revenues related to that technology and a redudatitiee future remaining useful life, and triggethd related intangible asset impairment.
The amount of impairment recorded by managemebeitember 2004 was determined using the two-stegepsompairment review as
required by SFAS 144. In the first step, managernentpared the projected undiscounted net cash #®sgciated with the technology
acquired from Plexus over its remaining life agaitsscarrying amount. Management determined timatcarrying amount of the technology
acquired from Plexus exceeded its projected undigeal cash flows. In the second step, managemtimiagsd the fair value of the
technology using the income method of valuationicivlincluded the use of estimated discounted dastsfusing a discount rate of 28.5%.
Based on management's assessment, the Compange@eonon-cash impairment charge of approximately Million in December 2004,
which was included as a component of the Compapgsating loss.

Transfer of Intangible Assets to Pecos Labs, Inc.

In May 2004, the Company sold intangible assetsfits immunological bioinformatics technology arettain noneore vaccine developme
assets to a privately-held company, Pecos Labs(1Recos") in exchange for 150,000 shares of Peowsnon stock. In addition, concurrent
with the asset transfer, the Company terminateenitgloyment agreement with the President of the [i2omyn. The Company paid
approximately $270,000 in severance to the Presaewell as accelerated vesting on 100,000 stptikres that were due to vest in May
2004. No compensation charge was recorded as #reiex price of the options was above the faireaharket price on the date of
termination. In addition, the Company reduced thweaant not to compete with the President to o frem the date of termination.

As a result of the Pecos transaction in the seqoagter of 2004, the Company performed an impaitmeriew of the intangible assets in
accordance with SFAS

144. The impairment of intangible assets consis$307,063 of impairments to unamortized intangéssets related to the grants transferred
to Pecos and $303,000 of impairment to the unameatttovenant not to compete with the Presidert@fompany due to the reduction of
the covenant to one year from the date of ternonati

The Company is accounting for its investment ind3agsing the cost method under Accounting PrinsiBleard Opinion No. 18, "The Equi
Method of Accounting for Investments in Common &tdeased upon its 10% ownership of Pecos. The Cagnpalued the 150,000 comm
shares at $0.10 per share based on an investméstaha concurrent time by an outside investoremoP at $0.10 per share.

5. Stockholders' Equity

At December 31, 2004, the Company's authorizedestegpital consisted of 60,000,000 shares, of wb@;600,000 are designated common
shares and 10,000,000 are designated preferreglssfidre Company's Board of Directors is authorteadsue preferred shares in series with
rights, privileges and qualifications of each sedetermined by the Board.

2004 Placements

In August 2003, the Company entered into a seesrjiurchase agreement with MacAndrews & Forbesihigddnc. ("MacAndrews &
Forbes"), a holding company of which the Compa@yiairman of the Board of Directors is Vice Chairnaal a director. Pursuant to the
agreement, the Company raised gross proceeds®h$ilion from MacAndrews & Forbes and certain &f @mployees, in exchange for
694,444 shares of the Company's common stock ite @ $1.44 per share and warrants to purchagg®32 shares of the Company's
common stock at an exercise price of $2.00 pershamrddition, MacAndrews & Forbes and certaiit©employees were granted an option,
exercisable through October 13, 2003, to invesbugn additional $9.0 million in the Company on Haene terms.
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In October 2003, MacAndrews & Forbes, certain ®kinployees and TransTech Pharma, Inc., a relarégtp the Company and an affiliate
of MacAndrews & Forbes ("TransTech Pharma"), exseditheir option to invest $9.0 million in the Caanp, in exchange for an aggregat
6,250,000 shares of common stock of the Companys1on stock, and warrants to purchase up to areggtg of 3,125,000 shares of the
Company's common stock at an exercise price ofd§2e0 share. Immediately prior to the exerciseushsoption, MacAndrews & Forbes
assigned the right to invest up to $5.0 milliothie Company to TransTech Pharma. The Company ansTech Pharma are parties to a-
discovery collaboration agreement signed in Oct@0&2 (see Note 7).

In accordance with and subject to the terms anditions of the securities purchase agreement, Mdo#wms & Forbes and certain of its
employees invested $2.2 million in exchange foP,887 shares of the Company's common stock ate @i $1.44 per share and received
warrants to purchase up to an additional 749,784eshof common stock at an exercise price of $edGhare.

In January 2004, following the approval of the Camys stockholders, MacAndrews & Forbes and Tracis Rharma completed the final
portion of their investment. MacAndrews & Forbegasted $1,840,595 in exchange for 1,278,191 sludireemmon stock at a price of $1.44
per share, and warrants to purchase up to an enalitt39,095 shares of common stock at an exepcise of $2.00 per share; and TransTech
Pharma invested $5,000,000 in exchange for 3,42%R3res of common stock and warrants to purchase an additional 1,736,111 shares
of common stock on the same terms. In additiopaasof the investment, MacAndrews & Forbes anch$Tach Pharma each were given the
right to appoint one board member to the Boardiodd@ors, subject to certain terms and conditi@rs.January 8, 2004, in accordance with
the terms of the investment, the respective desgpéMacAndrews & Forbes and TransTech Pharma agpeinted to serve on SIGA's
board of directors.

In 2004, the Company incurred costs of $161,00&tedlto work performed by TransTech Pharma araffiliates in connection with the
DegP SBIR grant and other grants.

2003 Placements

In June 2003, the Company raised gross proceedts.&fmillion in a private offering for 1,250,000asks of common stock. In connection
with the offering the Company issued warrants tcpase 625,000 shares of the Company's common tetgdlicement agents. Each of the
warrants are exercisable at a price of $2.00 pereséind have a term of five years.

2002 Placements

In December 2002, the Company raised gross procd#ekiis865 million in a private offering of commatock and warrants to purchase the
Company's common stock. The Company sold 1,70G0886:s of common stock. In connection with theroféethe Company issued
171,216 warrants to purchase shares of the Conmgpaoyimon stock to placement agents. The warraatexarcisable at a price of $1.65 and
have a term of five years. The Company receivegrateeds of $891,000 prior to December 31, 20@2nah proceeds of $791,940 after
December 31, 2002. As such, as of December 31,,200Zompany had recorded a subscription recevait$h791,940.

In October 2002, the Company raised gross proaefe®lt.04 million in a private offering of commorosk and warrants to purchase the
Company's common stock. The Company sold 1,03%Ba6es of common stock and 518,750 warrants. Theamta are exercisable at $2.25
and have a term of five years. In connection with affering the Company issued 103,750 warrangtohase shares of the Company's
common stock to placement agents. The warrantexaneisable at a price of $1.50 and have a terfivefyears. The fair value of the
warrants attributable to consultants on the dagrafit was approximately $64,670.

Other Transactions

In 2004, the Company reached a settlement agredordmteach of contract with a founder of the Compavhereby the founder returned
40,938 common shares, 150,000 warrants and $1500@ Company. The common shares were retireléZbmpany. The Company
recorded the settlement amount as other income.
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Preferred Stock

Holders of the Series A Convertible Preferred Staakentitled to (i) cumulative dividends at anw@arrate of 6% payable when and if
declared by the Company's board of directorsjr(ithe event of liquidation of the Company, eachdbois entitled to receive $1.4375 per
share (subject to certain adjustments) plus aliusctbut unpaid dividends; (iii) convert each star8eries A to a number of fully paid and
non-assessable shares of common stock as calcblatlididing $1.4375 by the Series A Conversiorc®i(shall initially be $1.4375); and
(iv) vote with the holders of other classes of slsayn an as-converted basis.

During the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2@0tin preferred stockholders converted 13,3283&31185 Series A convertible
preferred stock into 13,328 and 353,185, respdgtigbares of common stock.

6. Stock option plan and warrants
Amended and Restated 1996 Incentive and Non-Quakifil Stock Option Plan

In January 1996, the Company implemented its 188éntive and Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan (tRé&h"). The Plan as amended
provides for the granting of up to 10,000,000 skafethe Company's common stock to employees, ttamési and outside directors of the
Company. The exercise period for options grantetkuthe Plan, except those granted to outsidetdi®ds determined by a committee of
the Board of Directors. Stock options granted ttsigie directors pursuant to the Plan must havexarcise price equal to or in excess of the
fair market value of the Company's common stodkeatdate of grant.

Stock option activity of the Company is summariasdollows:

Weighted Average
Number of Shares Exercise Price

Options outstanding on January 1, 2002 5,139,811 $ 250
Granted 777,750 2.66
Forfeited (85,000) 3.80
Exercised (25,000) 1.13

Options outstanding at December 31, 2002 5,807,561 $ 252
Granted 813,250 1.79
Forfeited (160,000) 4.81
Exercised -- --

Options outstanding at December 31, 2003 6,460,811 $ 233
Granted 3,442,500 1.34
Forfeited (138,334) 1.77
Exercised (2,916) 1.77

Options outstanding at December 31, 2004 9,762,061 $ 199

Options available for future grant at December 31, 2004 22,898

Weighted average fair value of options granted duri ng 2004 $ 098

Weighted average fair value of options granted duri ng 2003 $ 114
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The following table summarizes information abouti@aps outstanding at December 31, 2004:

Number Weighted Average
Outstanding at  Remaining C ontractual Weighted Average  Number Exercisab le  Weighted Average
Exercise Price December 31, 2004 Life (Y ears) Exercise Price at December 31, 2 004 Exercise Price
1.00-1.85 4,586,584 8.9 8 $1.40 1,804,415 $1.47
2.00 - 2.75 4,837,250 6.1 9 $2.38 4,762,250 $2.38
3.94-55 338,227 4.1 6 $4.36 312,227 $4.39
9,762,061 6,878,892

At December 31, 2004, options held outside of the pncluded 125,000 options granted to an emplaeyek125,000 options granted to
consultants and have not been included in the atadoles.

The following tables summarize information aboutraats outstanding at December 31, 2004:

Weighted Average

Number of War rants Exercise Price Expiration Da tes
Outstanding at January 1, 2002 4,23 1,428 $ 3.61
Granted 79 3,716 2.03 09/30/2007 - 12/ 31/2007
Canceled / Expired (35 0,000) 7.32
Outstanding at December 31, 2002 4,67 5144  $ 3.06
Granted 2,16 1,250 1.98 12/31/2007 - 03/ 01/2012
Exercised 4 0,562) 1.19
Canceled / Expired (46 6,216) 5.83
Outstanding at December 31, 2003 6,32 9616 $ 2.50
Granted 2,37 5,206 2.00 08/10/2010
Exercised (8 5,228) 1.08
Canceled / Expired (15 0,000) 1.50
Outstanding at December 31, 2004 8,46 9594 $ 2.39

Number of Warrants
Outstanding Exercise Price

568,410 1.45-1.69
5,349,972 2.00-2.25
2,551,212 2.94 - 3.63

8,469,594

In February 2003, the Company entered into a 12tmoonsulting agreement with an outside consultattie amount of $249,420 to provide
marketing research support. Upon being awardedurelseontracts in excess of $2.0 million from ssgpport, the Company is obligated to
issue 400,000 fully vested warrants at an exeqmise of $1.32 with an expiration of 3 years. Adafcember 31, 2004, the Company had not
yet been awarded contracts in excess of $2.0 millio March 2004, the Company renewed the congudigreement in the amount

$320,000 for an additional eight months from Mat¢i2004.

During 2003, the Company extended 3,225,000 optietd by the Board of Directors for an additionaglears. The Company accounted for
such extension in accordance with Financial Accogr$tandard Board Interpretation Number 44, "Aatmng for Certain Transactions
Involving Stock Compensation - An InterpretationA#B
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Opinion Number 25". No compensation cost was irenimith the extension as the exercise prices obgi@ns were higher than the fair
value of the common stock at the date of modiforati

2002 Grants

In September 2002, the Company entered into arfaanth consulting agreement under which a consuétssisted the Company with public
relations efforts in the United States and Europexichange for a monthly retainer of $3,500 forfthe-month term and 50,000 fully vested
options to purchase shares of the Company's constock. Of the amount of fully vested options, 2B,8Bares have an exercise price of
$1.50 per share and 25,000 shares have an exprieef $1.75. Upon grant, the Company record881618 stock compensation charge to
operations based upon the fair value of the options

In April 2002, in connection with an existing cottiwg agreement, the Company granted a consultanption to purchase 15,000 shares of
the Company's common stock under the Plan. Upant,gtee Company recorded a $10,269 stock compemseliarge to operations based
upon the fair value of the option.

In connection with the development of its licensathnologies the Company entered into a consudtgrgement with a scientist who
developed such technologies, under which the ctarsiderves as the Company's Chief Scientific Amtvisn June 2001, the Company ente
into an amended consulting agreement with the 8stamder which the scientist was to provide sssito the Company for a three-year
period commencing on September 10, 2001. In coratide for the consulting services the scientiss wabe paid an annual fee of $50,000
payable quarterly. In addition, the Company gramiedscientist options to purchase 225,000 shdresnmomon stock at $3.94 per share. On
September 10, 2001, ten percent of the optiongdestd the remaining options were to vest in 36thipiinstallments beginning on October
10, 2001. In September 2002, the Company and theuttant terminated their arrangement and all uledegptions were forfeited. For the
year ended December 31, 2002, the Company recardgztk compensation charge of $58,¢

7. Related Parties
Directors

The Company's Chairman of the Board of DirectoMic® Chairman and a director of MacAndrews & Fahi@uring 2003 and January
2004, MacAndrews & Forbes, along with TransTechrRiaainvested $10.0 million in SIGA. Furthermoneptdirectors of the Company are
also directors of TransTech Pharma. Additionallgjractor of the Company, is a member of the Comilsaputside counsel. (See Note 5).

Collaborative Research Agreements

In October 2002, the Company entered into a colktbe research agreement with TransTech Pharmedated party, for the discovery and
treatment of human diseases. Under the terms @afgreement, TransTech Pharma and the Company besedato contribute each of their
respective services and share equally in costpatfified research projects. In consideration ofsieices performed by TransTech Pharma
and use of its proprietary technology, SIGA grargadexclusive, fullypaid, nontransferable, nonsublicenseable, limitszhke to use existir
rights to patents and technologies. Both partidissivare equally in the ownership of compounds i@tated intellectual property derived frc
such research efforts. In January 2004, TransThemfa invested $5.0 million in SIGA (See Note 5).
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8. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment consisted of the¥alg at December 31, 2004 and 2003:

Laboratory equipment $
Leasehold improvements

Computer equipment

Furniture and fixtures

Construction in-progress

Less - Accumulated depreciation

Property, plant & equipment, net $

9. Income Taxes

1,259,711 $ 1,134,110
632,435 690,138
212,077 199,209
194,890 292,817
163,397 -

2,462,510 2,316,274

(1,954,495)  (1,937,228)
508,015 $ 379,046

The Company has incurred losses since inceptioithAtave generated net operating loss carryforwafrdgproximately $31,350,000 at
December 31, 2004 for federal and state incom@uagoses. These carryforwards are available t@bffgure taxable income and begin
expiring in 2010 for federal income tax purposes.airesult of a previous change in stock ownersh@annual utilization of the net
operating loss carryforwards is subject to limdatiThe net operating loss carryforwards and tearpatifferences, arising primarily from
deferred research and development expenses ardedifes in the treatment of intangible assetsltri@sa noncurrent deferred tax asset at
December 31, 2004 and 2003 of approximately $1608@and $13,030,000, respectively. In considematithe Company's accumulated
losses and the uncertainty of its ability to uélthis deferred tax asset in the future, the Compas recorded a valuation allowance of an

equal amount on such date to fully offset the defktax asset.

Following is a summary of changes in our valuaatiowance for deferred tax assets as of and foy#laes ended December 31, 2004, 2003

and 2002 (in thousands):

Additions

Balance at Charged to Cos

December 31, Beginning of Year and Expenses

2004 $ 13,030 $ 3,470
2003 $11,144 $ 1,886
2002 $ 9,811 $ 1,333

ts Balance at
Deductions End of Year
$ $ 16,500
$ $ 13,030
$ $11,144

For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2008 ,aimpany's effective tax rate differs from the fadistatutory rate principally due to net
operating losses and other temporary differencewffiich no benefit was recorded, state taxes anerqtermanent differences.

10. Commitments and Contingencies

Employment agreements

In July 2004, the Company entered into a 3-yearleynpent agreement with its Vice President of BussnBevelopment, commencing in
August 2004. The employment agreement providearicannual salary of $230,000 plus bonuses basedrtain objectives and goals. Under
the agreement, the Company granted the employeptam to acquire 200,000 shares of its commorkséb@n exercise price of $1.40, of
which 50,000 options vested upon signing and 50y@3@s at each of the next 3 anniversaries. Atlitberetion of the Board of Directors the
employee may be granted additional awards of ®bt000 shares each, upon meeting certain milestdhesagreement has a one year

renewal option.



In July 2004, the Company entered into an employragreement with Bernard L. Kasten, M.D. to sersv¢he Company's Chief Executive
Officer ("CEQ"). The employment agreement provittesan annual salary of $250,000 plus, at the disan of the Board of Directors, bonus
payments for a 3-year initial term with an automatiyear renewal unless either party gives notie¢ it does not want to renew. The
agreement also provides for an award of 2,500,@@@ms to purchase common stock with an exerciee @f $1.30, of which 500,000 vesi
upon signing, one million options vest over theezuyinitial term and the remaining 1 million optsovest over the renewal term. The CEO is
also entitled to additional options, to be granipdn meeting certain milestones.

In July 2004, the Company entered into an amendiodtg existing employment agreement with the Canys Chief Scientific Officer.
Pursuant to the amendment, the employment agreemeffiective through December 31, 2007 and pravide an annual salary of $225,000
plus, at the discretion of the Board of Direct@ar$ionus not to exceed 50% of the Chief Scientifficér's salary. The agreement also prov
for an option grant of 150,000 options to purchem®mmon stock with an exercise price of $1.40, oicWwiY5,000 vest on December 31, 2005
and 75,000 vest on December 31, 2006. In Octoh@2,26e Company granted the CSO options to ac0i@e000 shares of the Company's
common stock at an exercise price of $2.50. Upeh gpant, the CSO was required to surrender 50s880es granted under a previous grant
with an exercise price of $3.94. Under the Oct@i¥}2 grant, 75,000 shares vested immediately, D55b@res vested on September 1, 2003
and 2004 and 75,000 shares will vest on SeptemI280b. As such, 50,000 options are consideredbirioptions under APB 25 as
replacement awards for the options surrenderedthieoyears ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and #8892, was no stock compensation
charge as the fair value of the underlying comntonkswas below the exercise price of the option.

In June 2004, the Company entered into an amendméstexisting employment agreement with the Canys Chief Financial Officer.
Pursuant to the amendment, the employment agreemeffiective through December 31, 2005 and pravide an annual salary of $230,000
plus a one-time payment of $50,000 for the ChiefRtial Officer's prior service as Acting Chief Exéive Officer. An additional bonus not
to exceed 25% of the Chief Financial Officer's gataay be awarded at the discretion of the Boamiodctors. The agreement also provides
for an option grant of 150,000 options to purcha@m®mon stock with an exercise price of $1.40, oitwlr5,000 vested upon signing and the
remainder to vest on a prorata basis from Janua2@d5 through December 31, 2005.

In May 2003, the President and CEO of Plexus Vaceias appointed President of SIGA. The Presidahtiza Company entered into an
employment agreement for the period of May 23, 2008 December 31, 2005. Under the agreement, emsgtion was set at an annual
minimum base salary of $216,000 with certain bésgéfis defined. Additionally, 300,000 options wegranted under the Plan at an exercise
price of $1.81 per share. Of such grant, 100,00@0p vested immediately, 100,000 options were daleel to vest in May 2004 and the
remaining 100,000 options were scheduled to veltag 2005. In May 2004, upon selling intangibleeasg§rom the Company's
immunological bioinformatics technology and certagn-core vaccine development assets to Peco§dimpany terminated its employment
agreement with its President. The Company paidagmpately $270,000 in severance to the Presidentedisas accelerated vesting on
100,000 stock options that were due to vest in RI2gg4. No compensation charge was recorded as #reisx price of the options was above
the fair value market price on the date of ternmarat

Operating lease commitments

The Company leases certain facilities and officcepunder operating leases. Rent expense for #re gaded December 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002 was approximately $297,000, $235,000 and $203respectively. Minimum future rental commitmeeahder operating leases having
noncancelable lease terms in excess of one yeasdotlows:
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Year ended December 31,

2005 $ 239,700
2006 255,400
2007 261,800
2008 133,200
2009 135,900
2010 22,700
Total $ 1,048,700

Other

From time to time, the Company is involved in digsuor legal proceedings arising in the ordinamyrse of business. The Company believes
that there is no dispute or litigation pending tbaald have, individually or in the aggregate, damial adverse effect on its financial position,

results of operations or cash flows.
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11. Financial Information By Quarter (Unaudited) {housand, except for per share data)

2004 For The Quarter Ended March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
Revenues $ 161 $ 299 $ 533 $ 846
Selling, general & administrative $ 1, 006 $ 1,112 $ 919 $ 1, 005
Research and development $ 1, 020 $ 1,026 $ 827 $ 1, 292
Patent preparation fees $ 92 $ 55 $ 84 $ 162
In-process research and development $ - $ - $ 568 $ -
Impairment of intangible assets $ - $ 610 $ - $ 1, 508
Operating loss $ 1, 956 $ 2,504 $ 1,865 $ 3 123
Net loss $ 1, 940 $ 2,490 $ 1,837 $ 3, 106
Net loss per share: basic and diluted $ 0 .08 $ 011 $ 0.08 $ O 13
Market price range for common stock

High $ 2 .34 $ 193 $ 1.63 $ 1 75

Low $ 1 .85 $ 1.29 $ 1.23 $ 1 .35
2003 For The Quarter Ended March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
Revenues $ 205 $ 244 $ 176 $ 107
Selling, general & administrative $ 560 $ 748 $ 684 $ 654
Research and development $ 477 $ 643 $ 1,001 $ 822
Patent preparation fees $ 56 $ 66 $ 65 $ 113
In-process research and development $ - $ - $ - $ -
Impairment of intangible assets $ - $ - $ - $ 137
Operating loss $ 889 $ 1,214 $ 1,574 $ 1, 619
Net loss $ 882 $ 1,211 $ 1571 $ 1, 613
Net loss per share: basic and diluted $ 0 .07 $ 0.09 $ 0.09 $ 0 .09
Market price range for common stock

High $ 1 .49 $ 191 $ 213 $ 2 .60

Low $ 1 .02 $ 1.09 $ 161 $ 1 .80
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Account&on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this AnriR@port on Form 10-K, the Company's managementdimad the Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer, carried out an evalabf the effectiveness of the Company's disclesiontrols and procedures. Based upon
that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer ande€lrinancial Officer have concluded that the Comps disclosure controls and procedures
are effective.

There have been no changes in the Company's iht@mtols over financial reporting identified inrnection with the evaluation by the
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Offidiiat occurred during the Company's fourth fisaarter that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Compargternal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information
None.
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PART IlI
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Rgistrant
Information required by this item is incorporatedrbference from our Proxy Statement for the 2005ual Meeting of Shareholders.
Item 11. Executive Compensation
Information required by this item is incorporatedrbference from our Proxy Statement for the 2005ual Meeting of Shareholders.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial @Qvners and Management and Related Stockholder Matter
Information required by this item is incorporatedrbference from our Proxy Statement for the 2005ual Meeting of Shareholders.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa@ns
Information required by this item is incorporatedrbference from our Proxy Statement for the 2005ual Meeting of Shareholders.
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services
Information required by this item is incorporatedrbference from our Proxy Statement for the 2005ual Meeting of Shareholders.

57



Iltem 15. Exhibits

Exhibit

No.

PART IV

Description

2(a)

3(2)

3(b)

3(c)

4(2)

4(b)

4(c)

4(d)

4(e)

4(f)

10(a)

10(b)

10(c)

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as o
Company and Plexus Vaccine Inc. (Incor
8-K of the Company filed June 9, 2003).

Restated Articles of Incorporation of
reference to Form S-3 Registration St
May 10, 2000 (No. 333-36682)).

Bylaws of the Company (Incorporated
Registration Statement of the Compan
333-23037)).

Certificate of Designations of Series
and Preferences of Series A Convert
Company dated July 2, 2001 (Filed with
on Form 10-KSB for the year ended Decem
with the Securities and Exchange Commis

Form of Common Stock Certificate (Inco
SB-2 Registration Statement of the Comp
333-23037)).

Warrant Agreement dated as of September
and Vincent A. Fischetti (1) (Incorpora
Registration Statement of the Compan
333-23037)).

Warrant Agreement dated as of November
and David de Weese (1) (Incorporated
Registration Statement of the Compan
333-23037)).

Warrant Agreement between the Company
September 9, 1999 (Incorporated by refe
Report on Form 10-KSB for the year ende

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as
Company and Plexus Vaccine Inc. (Incor
8-K of the Company filed June 9, 2003).

Registration Rights Agreement, dated a
the Company and MacAndrews & Forbes Hol
reference to Form 8-K of the Company fi

License and Research Support Agreement
Rockefeller University, dated as of Ja
to License and Research Support Agree
The Rockefeller University, dated
(Incorporated by reference to Form SB-
the Company dated March 10, 1997 (No. 3

Research Agreement between the Company
as of January 31, 1996(2) (Incorporat
Registration Statement of the Compan
333-23037)).

Research Support Agreement between t
University, dated as of January 31
reference to Form SB-2 Registration S
March 10, 1997 (No. 333-23037)). Lette
5, 1999 to continue the Research Suppor
reference to the Company's Annual Repor
ended December 31, 1999).
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the Company (Incorporated by
atement of the Company dated
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and Determination of Rights
ible Preferred Stock of the
the Company's Annual Report
ber 31, 2002 initially filed

sion on March 31, 2003).
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any dated March 10, 1997 (No.

15, 1996 between the Company
ted by reference to Form SB-2
y dated March 10, 1997 (No.

18, 1996 between the Company
by reference to Form SB-2
y dated March 10, 1997 (No.

and Stefan Capital, dated
rence to the Company's Annual
d December 31, 1999).

of May 23, 2003, between the
porated by reference to Form

s of August 13, 2003, between
dings Inc. (Incorporated by
led August 18, 2003).

between the Company and The
nuary 31, 1996; and Amendment
ment between the Company and
as of October 1, 1996(2)
2 Registration Statement of
33-23037)).

and Emory University, dated
ed by reference to Form SB-2
y dated March 10, 1997 (No.

he Company and Oregon State
, 1996(2) (Incorporated by
tatement of the Company dated
r Agreement dated as of March
t Agreement (Incorporated by

t on Form 10-KSB for the year



10(d)

10(e)

10(f)

10(9)

10(h)

10(i)

10()

10(k)

10(l)

10(m)

10(n)

10(0)

Option Agreement between the Company
dated as of November 30, 1999 and
Agreement (Incorporated by reference t
on Form 10-KSB for the year ended Decem

Employment Agreement between the Com
dated as of January 1, 1996 (Incorpora
Registration Statement of the Compan
333-23037)).

Employment Agreement between the Compa
as of November 18, 1996(1) (Incorporat
Registration Statement of the Compan
333-23037)).

Employment Agreement between the Compan
as of April 1, 1997 (Incorporated by re
Form SB-2 Registration Statement of th
(No. 333-23037)).

Clinical Trials Agreement between the C
of Allergy and Infectious Diseases,
(Incorporated by reference to Amen
Registration Statement of the Compan
333-23037)).

Research Agreement between the Company
of State University of New York, d
(Incorporated by reference to Amen
Registration Statement of the Compan
333-23037)).

Collaborative Research and License Agre
Wyeth, dated as of July 1, 1997(2) (
Amendment No. 3 to Form SB-2 Registrat
dated September 2, 1997 (No. 333-23037)

Research Collaboration and License Agre
The Washington University, dated as
(Incorporated by reference to the Com
10-KSB for the year ended December 31,

Settlement Agreement and Mutual Releas
Washington University, dated as of Fe
by reference to the Company's Annual
year ended December 31, 1999).
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regiigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduatyp authorized.

SIGA TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
(Registrant)

Date: March 29, 2005 By: /s/ Bernard L. Kasten, MD.

Bernard L. Kasten, MD.
Chi ef Executive Oficer

Pursuant to the requirements of the SecuritiesoAtB34, this report has been signed below by dheviing persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the datéisated.

Signature Title o f Capacities Date

/sl Bernard L. Kasten, M.D.

Bernard L. Kasten, M.D. Chief E xecutive Officer March 29, 2005

/sl Thomas N. Konatich

Thomas N. Konatich Chief F inancial Officer March 29, 2005

/s/ Donald G. Drapkin

Donald G. Drapkin Chairma n of the Board March 29, 2005

/sl James J. Antal

James J. Antal Directo r March 29, 2005

/sl Thomas E. Constance

Thomas E. Constance Directo r March 29, 2005

/sl Adnan M. Mjalli, Ph.D.

Adnan M. Mjalli, Ph.D. Directo r March 29, 2005

/sl Mehmet C. Oz, M.D.

Mehmet C. Oz, M.D. Directo r March 29, 2005

/sl Eric A. Rose, M.D.

Eric A. Rose, M.D. Directo r March 29, 2005

/sl Paul G. Savas

Paul G. Savas Directo r March 29, 2005

IS/ Judy S. Slotkin

Judy S. Slotkin Directo r March 29, 2005

/sl Michael Weiner, M.D.

Michael Weiner, M.D. Directo r March 29, 2005



EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtlee Registration Statement on Forms S-3 (N83-3682, 333-43750, 333-64414,
333-72553, 333-74390, 333-103231, 333-120742 af3ell32356) and Forms S-8 (Nos. 333-35992, 333-56216333-112935) of SIGA
Technologies, Inc. of our report dated February22®5 relating to the financial statements, whippears in this Form 10-K.

/'s/ PRI CEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

New Yor k, New Yor k
March 29, 2005



EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Bernard L. Kasten, M.D., certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16f6IGA Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report doésantain any untrue statement of a material dacimit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to the period
covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememd,other financial information included in thisnaial report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer anaré¢ responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)}Heregistrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsgdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedioitge designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to tégistrant, including its consolidated subsidisris made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig annual report is being prepared;

(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratigslosure controls and procedures and presenteaisiannual report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyédport based on such evaluation; and

(c) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgit's internal control over financial reportihgt occurred during the registrant's fourth
fiscal quarter that has materially affected, aei@sonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reporting;
and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer anlablve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiioiiernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit commiteregistrant's board of directors (or personfopaing the equivalent functions);

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cboirer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regigtsaability to record, process, summarize and rtefreaincial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a siniifiole in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 30, 2005 By: /s/ Bernard L. Kasten, MD.

Bernard L. Kasten, MD.
Chi ef Executive Oficer



EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Thomas N. Konatich, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16f6IGA Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report doésantain any untrue statement of a material dacimit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to the period
covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememd,other financial information included in thisnaial report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer anaré¢ responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)}Heregistrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsgdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedioitge designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to tégistrant, including its consolidated subsidisris made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig annual report is being prepared;

(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratigslosure controls and procedures and presenteaisiannual report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyédport based on such evaluation; and

(c) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgit's internal control over financial reportihgt occurred during the registrant's fourth
fiscal quarter that has materially affected, aei@sonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reporting;
and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer anlablve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiioiiernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit commiteregistrant's board of directors (or personfopaing the equivalent functions);

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cboirer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regigtsaability to record, process, summarize and rtefreaincial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a siniifiole in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: March 30, 2005 By: /s/ Thomas N. Konatich

Thomas N. Konatich
Chi ef Financial Oficer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of SIGA Taologies, Inc. (the "Company") on Form KCGer the year ending December 31, 200-

filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioithe date hereof (the "Report"), I, Bernard L. t€asM.D., Chief Executive Officer of

the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. ss.1@85@dopted pursuant to ss.906 of the Sarbanesr®@xt of 2002, that, to the best of my
knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgwAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

March 30, 2005

/'SI Bernard L. Kasten, MD.

Bernard L. Kasten, MD.
Chi ef Executive O ficer



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of SIGA Taologies, Inc. (the "Company") on Form KCGer the year ending December 31, 200-
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioithe date hereof (the "Report"), I, Thomas N. Kma, Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. ss.135@dapted pursuant to ss.906 of the Sarbanes-OxdepfR002, that, to the best of my
knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgwAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

March 30, 2005

/'S Thomas N. Konatich

Thomas N. Konatich
Chi ef Financial Oficer



